ONCOSCREEN

D4.3 ONCOSCREEN INTEGRATED INTELLIGENT PLATFORM FOR CITIZENS, CLINICIANS & POLICYMAKERS (FIRST VERSION)

31.01.2024



Funded by the European Union

Submission date: M13

Due date: M13

DOCUMENT SUMMARY INFORMATION

Grant Agreement No.	101097036	Acronym	ONCOSCREEN
Full Title	A European "shield" against colorectal cancer based on novel, more precise and affordable risk-based screening methods and viable policy pathways		
Start Date	1 January 2023	Duration	48 months
Project URL	https://oncoscreen.health/		
Deliverable	D4.3: ONCOSCREEN Integrated Intelligent Platform for Citizens, Clinicians & Policy Makers (First version)		
Work Package	WP4 – ONCOSCREEN Intelligent Platform & Tools for Citizens, Clinicians & Policy Makers		
Туре	DEM — Demonstrator, pilot, prototype	Dissemination Level	SEN - Sensitive
Lead Beneficiary	CERTH		
Contributions	EXUS, ISPRINT, KT, BEIA, TECHNION, TLBG, AINIGMA, MUI, GERCOR, VITO, CTL, CSIC		
Authors	Thanassis Mavropoulos, Athina Tsanousa (CERTH) Aristodemos Pnevmatikakis, Spyros Spanos, Chris Tasatzis, Artemis Kim, Danae Lekka (iSprint);		
Co-authors	N/A		
Reviewers	VITO, TLBG		



DISCLAIMER

Views and opinions expressed in the publication are those of the author(s) only and do not necessarily reflect those of the European Union or the European Health and Digital Executive Agency. Neither the European Union nor the granting authority can be held responsible for them. While the information contained in the documents is believed to be accurate, it is provided "as is" and the authors(s) or any other participant in the ONCOSCREEN consortium make no warranty of any kind with regard to this material including, but not limited to the implied warranties of merchantability and fitness for a particular purpose. Neither the ONCOSCREEN Consortium nor any of its members, their officers, employees or agents shall be responsible or liable in negligence or otherwise howsoever in respect of any inaccuracy or omission herein. Without derogating from the generality of the foregoing neither the ONCOSCREEN Consortium nor any of its members, their officers, employees or agents shall be liable for any direct or indirect or consequential loss or damage caused by or arising from any information advice or inaccuracy or omission herein. The reader uses the information at his/her sole risk and liability.

COPYRIGHT MESSAGE

© Copyright in this document remains vested in the contributing project partners.

This document contains original unpublished work except where clearly indicated otherwise. Acknowledgement of previously published material and of the work of others has been made through appropriate citation, quotation or both. Reproduction is authorised, provided the source is acknowledged.



DOCUMENT HISTORY

Version	Date	Changes	Contributor(s)	Comments
V0.1	20.09.2020	First draft: ToC Released	CERTH	Proposed changes were discussed with the Project Coordinator
V0.2	23.11.2020	Second draft: Sections updated based on review comments	CERTH	Initial input was included by CERTH
Vo.3	15.01.2021	Third draft: input from partners is incorporated	CERTH	Requests were sent to partners and received input was included.
Vo.4	23.01.2021	Pre-final version: peer-review comments were addressed	CERTH	Incorporated comments from peer reviewers.
V1.0	31.01.2021	Final version: submitted to EC	EXUS	Quality Check and submission to the EU portal



PROJECT PARTNERS

Partner	Acronym
EXUS SOFTWARE MONOPROSOPI ETAIRIA PERIORISMENIS EVTHINIS	EXUS
UNIVERSITAETSMEDIZIN DER JOHANNES GUTENBERG-UNIVERSITAET MAINZ	UMC-Mainz
INSTITUTE OF COMMUNICATION AND COMPUTER SYSTEMS	ICCS
FIRALIS	Firalis
UNIVERSITATSKLINIKUM SCHLESWIG-HOLSTEIN	UKSH
UNIVERSITAET zu LUEBECK	UzL
LIETUVOS SVEIKATOS MOKSLU UNIVERSITETAS	LSMU
MEDIZINISCHE UNIVERSITAT GRAZ	MUG
INSTITUTO PORTUGUES DE ONCOLOGIA DO PORTO FRANCISCO GENTIL, EPE	IPO
INSTITUTUL ONCOLOGIC PROF. DR. ALEXANDRU TRESTIOREANU BUCURESTI	IOB
TECHNION - ISRAEL INSTITUTE OF TECHNOLOGY	TECHNION
UNIVERSIDADE DO MINHO	UMINHO
UNIVERSITEIT VAN TILBURG	TLBG
VLAAMSE INSTELLING VOOR TECHNOLOGISCH ONDERZOEK N.V	VITO
ETHNIKO KENTRO EREVNAS KAI TECHNOLOGIKIS ANAPTYXIS	CERTH
INNOVATION SPRINT	iSPRINT
SCIENTIFIC ACADEMY FOR SERVICE TECHNOLOGY EV	SERVTECH
AINIGMA TECHNOLOGIES	AINIGMA
CATALINK LIMITED	CATALINK
KONNEKT ABLE TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED	КТ
BEIA CONSULT INTERNATIONAL SRL	BEIA
UNIVERSIDAD DE LA RIOJA	URIOJA
TIME.LEX	time.lex
CARR COMMUNICATIONS LIMITED	CARR
MINISTRY OF HEALTH	MoHGR
PAGALBOS ONKOLOGINIAMS LIGONIAMS ASOCIACIJA	POLA LT
EUROPACOLON PORTUGAL- ASSOCIACAO DE LUTA CONTRA O CANCRO DO INTESTINO	ECPT
ELLINIKI ETAIREIA OGKOLOGIAS PEPTIKOU	HSGO
EUROPEAN SOCIETY OF DIGESTIVE ONCOLOGY	ESDO
FUNDATIA YOUTH CANCER EUROPE	YCE
MEDIZINISCHE UNIVERSITAT INNSBRUCK	MUI
LIETUVOS RESPUBLIKOS SVEIKATOS APSAUGOS MINISTERIJA	MoH-LT
EY ADVISORY SPA	EY
AGENCIA ESTATAL CONSEJO SUPERIOR DE INVESTIGACIONES CIENTIFICAS	CSIC
UNIVERSITE DE FRANCHE-COMTE	UFC
ROZENBAUM KONSULTING	ROSENBAUM
GIE AXA	GIE AXA
ASSOCIATION GERCOR	GERCOR



CC ASSURED

CC ASSURED



LIST OF ABBREVIATIONS

Abbreviation	Description
CA	Consortium Agreement
CRC	ColoRectal Cancer
D	Deliverable
GA	Grant Agreement
IPR	Intellectual Property Rights
JWT	JSON Web Token
LIT	Live Integration Test
SSL	Secure Sockets Layer
TR	Technical Requirement
UR	User Requirement
WP	Work Package



Executive Summary

The first version of D_{4.3} includes information regarding the development of the WP4 tools ONCO-RISTE, ONCO-CAWA, ONCO-CLIDE, ONCO-EVIDA and data fusion. D_{4.3} describes the iterative Co-Designed System activities with the end users, the analysis and architecture, and the performance in lab tests of the corresponding tools within the first year of the project.

This document offers a comprehensive description of the project's actions on addressing end user requirements, and it explores the tools' innovation aspects along with its functionalities and designs. Specifically, the tools reported in D4.3 present a significant achievement during the first year since a large set of end user and technical requirements has been fulfilled. Over the next period, the final updates of the tools will be included in the second iteration of this deliverable (D4.4), which is due at M29. Moreover, the overall trustworthiness is examined along with the risks and the ability to mitigate them. The last part involves the next actions that will be followed for each tool.



TABLE OF CONTENTS

Execu	tive Summary7
1	Introduction15
1.1	Deliverable objectives15
1.2	Relationship with other deliverables and tasks16
1.3	Deliverable structure
2	Iterative Co-Design Activities with End Users17
2.1	ONCO-RISTE
2.2	ONCO-CAWA17
2.3	ONCO-CLIDE
2.4	ONCO-EVIDA
2.5	DATA FUSION 19
3	ONCO-RISTE Tool analysis and architecture 20
3.1	Addressing End-user and Technical Requirements 20
3.1.1	Addressing End User Requirements 20
3.1.2	Addressing Technical Requirements21
3.2	ONCO-RISTE Analysis23
3.3	ONCO-RISTE Innovation Aspects
3.4	ONCO-RISTE Functionalities and Design 24
3.4.1	Functionalities 25
3.4.2	Design 26
3.4.3	ONCO-RISTE Data Flows
3.5	ONCO-RISTE Trustworthiness
Dynar	nic Parametrisation of Fuzzy C-Means Algorithm27
3.6	Risks and Mitigation Measures 28
3.6.1	Risk 1 – Lack of initial data 28
4	ONCO-CAWA Tool analysis and architecture
4.1	Addressing End-user and Technical Requirements
4.1.1	Addressing End User Requirements 30
4.1.2	Addressing Technical Requirements32
0	N COREEN 8

4.2	ONCO-CAWA Analysis35
4.3	ONCO-CAWA Innovation Aspects
4.4	ONCO-CAWA Functionalities and Design35
4.4.1	Functionalities
4.4.2	ONCO-CAWA Data Flows 50
4.5	Risks and Mitigation Measures51
4.5.1	Risk 1 – Lack of interaction between technical/clinician/end-users
4.5.2	Risk 2 — Lack of end-user engagement 52
4.5.3	Risk 3 – Inefficient tools53
4.5.4	Risk 4 – End-User engagement with the mobile app54
5	Clinical Decision Support System Tool analysis and architecture (ONCO-CLIDE)
5.1	Addressing End-user and Technical Requirements55
5.1.1	Addressing End User Requirements55
5.1.2	Addressing Technical Requirements55
5.2	ONCO-CLIDE Innovation Aspects55
	ONCO CLIDE Eventtionalities and Design
5.3	ONCO-CLIDE Functionalities and Design
5.3 5.3.1	Functionalities
5·3 5.3.1 5.3.2	Functionalities and Design
5.3 5.3.1 5.3.2 5.3.3	Functionalities and Design
5.3 5.3.1 5.3.2 5.3.3 5.4	ONCO-CLIDE Functionalities and Design 56 Functionalities 56 Design 57 ONCO-CLIDE Data Flows 61 ONCO-CLIDE Trustworthiness 61
5.3 5.3.1 5.3.2 5.3.3 5.4 5.5	ONCO-CLIDE Functionalities and Design 56 Functionalities 56 Design 57 ONCO-CLIDE Data Flows 61 ONCO-CLIDE Trustworthiness 61 Risks and Mitigation Measures 61
5.3 5.3.1 5.3.2 5.3.3 5.4 5.5 5.5.1	ONCO-CLIDE Functionalities and Design 56 Functionalities 56 Design 57 ONCO-CLIDE Data Flows 61 ONCO-CLIDE Trustworthiness 61 Risks and Mitigation Measures 61 Risk 1 - Availability of early diagnostic data 61
5.3 5.3.1 5.3.2 5.3.3 5.4 5.5 5.5.1 5.5.1	ONCO-CLIDE Functionalities and Design 56 Functionalities 56 Design 57 ONCO-CLIDE Data Flows 61 ONCO-CLIDE Trustworthiness 61 Risks and Mitigation Measures 61 Risk 1 - Availability of early diagnostic data 61 Risk 2 – Quality of early diagnostic data 62
5.3 5.3.1 5.3.2 5.3.3 5.4 5.5 5.5.1 5.5.2 5.5.2	Functionalities and Design
5.3 5.3.1 5.3.2 5.3.3 5.4 5.5 5.5.1 5.5.2 5.5.3 5.5.3 5.5.4	Functionalities and Design
5.3 5.3.1 5.3.2 5.3.3 5.4 5.5 5.5.1 5.5.2 5.5.3 5.5.3 5.5.4 6	Functionalities and Design 56 Functionalities 56 Design 57 ONCO-CLIDE Data Flows 61 ONCO-CLIDE Trustworthiness 61 Risks and Mitigation Measures 61 Risk 1 - Availability of early diagnostic data 61 Risk 2 - Quality of early diagnostic data 62 Risk 3 - Availability of traditional diagnostic data 63 Risk 4 - Participation of clinical partners 63 ONCO-EVIDA Tool analysis and architecture 65
5.3 5.3.1 5.3.2 5.3.3 5.4 5.5 5.5.1 5.5.2 5.5.3 5.5.4 6 6.1	Functionalities and Design 56 Functionalities 56 Design 57 ONCO-CLIDE Data Flows 61 ONCO-CLIDE Trustworthiness 61 Risks and Mitigation Measures 61 Risk 1 - Availability of early diagnostic data 61 Risk 2 - Quality of early diagnostic data 62 Risk 3 - Availability of traditional diagnostic data 63 Risk 4 - Participation of clinical partners 63 ONCO-EVIDA Tool analysis and architecture 65 Addressing End-user and Technical Requirements 65
5.3 5.3.1 5.3.2 5.3.3 5.4 5.5 5.5.1 5.5.2 5.5.3 5.5.4 6 6.1 6.1.1	Functionalities and Design 56 Functionalities 56 Design 57 ONCO-CLIDE Data Flows 61 ONCO-CLIDE Trustworthiness 61 Risks and Mitigation Measures 61 Risk 1 - Availability of early diagnostic data 61 Risk 2 - Quality of early diagnostic data 62 Risk 3 - Availability of traditional diagnostic data 63 Risk 4 - Participation of clinical partners 63 ONCO-EVIDA Tool analysis and architecture 65 Addressing End-user and Technical Requirements 65 Addressing End-User Requirements 67
5.3 5.3.1 5.3.2 5.3.3 5.4 5.5 5.5.1 5.5.2 5.5.3 5.5.4 6 6.1 6.1.1 6.1.2	Functionalities and Design 56 Functionalities 56 Design 57 ONCO-CLIDE Data Flows 61 ONCO-CLIDE Trustworthiness 61 Risks and Mitigation Measures 61 Risk 1 - Availability of early diagnostic data 61 Risk 2 - Quality of early diagnostic data 62 Risk 3 - Availability of traditional diagnostic data 63 Risk 4 - Participation of clinical partners 63 ONCO-EVIDA Tool analysis and architecture 65 Addressing End-User Requirements 67 Addressing End-User Requirements 67 Addressing Technical Requirements 67

ONCOSCREEN

6.3	ONCO-EVIDA Functionalities and Design	
6.3.1	Functionalities	
6.3.2	Design	
6.3.3	ONCO-EVIDA Data Flows	69
6.4	ONCO-EVIDA Trustworthiness	69
6.5	Risks and Mitigation Measures	69
6.5.1	Risk 23 – Lack of partner engagement	69
6.5.2	Risk 24 — Mismatch between TRs and URsErro	or! Bookmark not defined.
6.5.3	Risk 46 – High-resolution data not supported	
7	DATA FUSION Analysis and Architecture	72
7.1	Iterative Co-Design Activities with End Users	72
7.2	Addressing End-user and Technical Requirements	
7.2.1	Addressing End-User Requirements Erro	or! Bookmark not defined.
7.2.2	Addressing Technical Requirements Erro	or! Bookmark not defined.
7.3	DATA FUSION Analysis	72
7.4	DATA FUSION Innovation Aspects	72
7.5	DATA FUSION Functionalities and Design Analysis	72
7.5.1	Analysis of Functionalities	72
7.5.2	Design Analysis	73
7.5.3	DATA FUSION Data Flows	73
7.6	Data Fusion Tool Trustworthiness	73
7.7	Risks and Mitigation Measures	73
7.7.1	Risk 1 - Unsuitable cancer models	73
8	Performance in Lab Tests/Clinical Trials	
8.1	ONCO-RISTE in Laboratory Test 1 (LT1)	76
8.2	ONCO-CAWA in Laboratory Test 1 (LT1)	
8.3	ONCO-CLIDE in Laboratory Test 1 (LT1)	
8.4	ONCO-EVIDA in Laboratory Test 1 (LT1)	79
8.5	DATA FUSION in Laboratory Test 1 (LT1)	80
8.6	ONCO-RISTE in Laboratory Test 2 (LT2)	80

ONCOSCREEN

D4.3 ONCOSCREEN Integrated Intelligent Platform for Citizens, Clinicians & Policy Makers (First version)

8.7	ONCO-CAWA in Laboratory Test 2 (LT2)	83	
8.8	ONCO-CLIDE in Laboratory Test 2 (LT2)	83	
8.9	ONCO-EVIDA in Laboratory Test 2 (LT2)	83	
8.10	DATA FUSION in Laboratory Test 2 (LT2)	84	
9	Next Steps	.85	
9.1	ONCO-RISTE	85	
9.2	ONCO-CAWA	85	
9.3	ONCO-CLIDE	85	
9.4	ONCO-EVIDA	85	
9.5	DATA FUSION	85	
Conclu	usion	.87	
Refere	References Error! Bookmark not define		
Annex	nnex A: Code for Data Flow Messages		



LIST OF TABLES

Table 1 Description of Action: Task 4.3
Table 2 Linkages between D4.3 and other ONCOSCREEN deliverables
Table 3 ONCO-RISTE end-user requirements 20
Table 4 ONCO-RISTE technical requirements 21
Table 5 ONCO-RISTE Risk 1. 28
Table 6 ONCO-CLIDE Risk 1. 62
Table 7 ONCO-CLIDE Risk 2
Table 8 ONCO-CLIDE Risk 3
Table 9 ONCO-CLIDE Risk 4
Table 10 ONCO_EVIDA Risk 2369
Table 11 ONCO_EVIDA Risk 24 Error! Bookmark not defined.
Table 12 ONCO_EVIDA Risk 46

LIST OF FIGURES

Figure 1 ONCOSCREEN System architecture
Figure 2 The ONCO-RISTE data flow27
Figure 3: Process for pre-enrolled subjects. Initial and login pages
Figure 4: Process employing registration codes. Registration code, code request and account creation pages
Figure 5: Email verification process. Verification page in the app, verification email and successful verification page in the browser
Figure 6: First time login process. Consent, body metrics and gender pages
Figure 7: Mini manual pages
Figure 8: Home page 40
Figure 9: Activity tracker connection - Garmin41
Figure 10: Profile page
Figure 11: Physical activity widget 43
Figure 12: Sleep widget 43
Figure 13: Heart rate widget

ONCOSCREEN

Figure 14: Weight widget	45
Figure 15: Liquids widget	4 ⁶
Figure 16: Nutrition widget	46
Figure 17: Ingesting Kafka messages for automatic data inclusion in ONCO-CAWA.	47
Figure 18: Answering a questionnaire	48
Figure 19: Browsing answers in the eDiary widget	49
Figure 20: ONCO-CAWA notifications and running a dialogue via the virtual coach	50
Figure 21: API endpoints offered by ONCO-CAWA for the provision of the collected information to ONCOSCREEN.	on 51
Figure 22 ONCO-CLIDE End User Requirements.	55
Figure 23 ONCO-CLIDE Technical Requirements.	55
Figure 24 ONCO-CLIDE General design	57
Figure 25 Welcome screen	58
Figure 26 Signup page	58
Figure 27 Cases page	59
Figure 28 Main dashboard	59
Figure 29 Patient page6	ŝo
Figure 30 Profile screen6	ŝo
Figure 31 ONCO-CLIDE Data Flows.	61
Figure 32 Registration (a) and Login (b) Page of ONCO-EVIDA.	67
Figure 33 ONCO-EVIDA's home page	67
Figure 34 ONCO-EVIDA's dataset page, where the user can see an overview of the available datasets.	67
Figure 35 Information for each dataset is given in a table format.	67
Figure 36 In this page the user is given an overview of the dashboards6	68
Figure 37 The chart page depicts the produced chart alongside a pivot table6	58
Figure 38 In this page the user can create a chart by selecting the desired chart type6	58
Figure 39 The individual's dashboard page depicts all the charts belonging to this dashboard6	59
Figure 40 Result of Fuzzy C-means in LIT1 for 3-level risk. Principal Component technique7	76
Figure 41 User input interface	77

ON COSCREEN

Figure 42: ONCO-RISTE 1st LIT output screen	78
Figure 43: ONCO-RISTE console output during 1st LIT	78
Figure 44 Logical flow chart of ONCO-CLIDE.	79
Figure 45 Interrelations between risk factors and CRC incidences.	. 80
Figure 47: Test to fetch ONCO-CAWA user input data	81
Figure 46: ONCO-RISTE automatically fetching user input data from ONCO-CAWA	81
Figure 48: ONCO-CAWA receiving ONCO-RISTE output	. 82
Figure 49: ONCO-CLIDE receiving ONCO-RISTE output.	. 82



1 Introduction

1.1 The need for D4.3 in the project level

This deliverable unveils a significant milestone in the project's evolution, presenting the initial version that delves into the development progress of key tools, namely ONCO-RISTE, ONCO-CAWA, ONCO-CLIDE, ONCO-EVIDA, and data fusion.

This documentation encapsulates the iterative Co-Designed System activities, involving end users in the analysis and architecture phases, and rigorously assessing the tools' requirements through two lab tests during the project's inaugural year. The project commenced with workshops facilitating the early gathering and fulfilment of the end-users' requirements in the tool's development. Furthermore, in the two Live Integration Tests (LITs) conducted for this deliverable, end-user feedback and inquiries after tool demonstrations played a pivotal role in enhancing the tool's current quality and shaping the subsequent developmental steps. However, it should be noted that the tools will not undergo clinical trial testing since samples of blood, saliva etc. that are collected are not relevant for the use cases of these tools.

Within D_{4.3} the project's dedication to meet end user needs and the steps towards implementation of the respective technical requirements is shown. Its subsections analyse each ONCOSCREEN module by describing the innovation aspects, functionalities, and complex design of the tools. The report delves into an examination of trustworthiness for each tool, methodically scrutinizing associated risks and proposing strategies for mitigation.

In chapter 8 the performance in lab tests is examined and the improvements from one pilot to the other is examined reporting major updates for each tool. Finally, in chapter 9 a forward-looking perspective is also presented, outlining the subsequent actions to be followed for each tool.

In essence, D_{4.3} is providing insights into the project's current roadmap, achievements, and future steps.

1.1 Deliverable objectives

Table 1 Description of Action: Task 4.3

ONCOSCREEN DoA requirements	Deliverable addressing the requirements	Brief description
WP4: ONCOSCREEN Intelligent Platform &	D4.3: ONCOSCREEN Integrated Intelligent	This deliverable reports on the co- design activities with the end-users on
Tools for Citizens,	Platform for Citizens,	the development and architecture of the ONCO-RISTE, ONCO-CAWA,



Clinicians	&	Policy	Clinicians & Policy Makers	CDSSM,	ONCO-EVIDA,	and	data
Makers			(First version)	fusion too	ols.		

1.2 Relationship with other deliverables and tasks

Table 2 Linkages between D4.3 and other ONCOSCREEN deliverables

Deliverable	Description of the deliverable	Link to D4.3
D4.1	Co-Designed System Architecture (First Version)	The collection of user and technical requirements are implemented in D4.1 which are addressed in this deliverable.
D2.1	Clinical Knowledge Database (First Version)	D2.1 provides a description of data that are needed for the various tools of this deliverable to operate.
D5.6	ONCOSCREEN Laboratory tests and evaluation	D5.6 closely relates to the current deliverable, since it contains the results and the adjustments/updates from the lab tests.

1.3 Deliverable structure

This deliverable is sectioned as follows: section 1 introduces the reader to the concept of the document, while section 2 reports on the steps taken towards an Ilterative Co-Design approach with the participation of Technical Partners and End Users and the respective activities that have been adopted for each tool. Sections 3 to 7 elaborate on the architecture and provide an analysis for each tool, addressing End User and Technical Requirements, presenting the respective Innovation Aspects, the Functionalities and Design, Trustworthiness, while, lastly, reporting on Risks and Mitigation Measures. Section 8 focuses on the tools' performance in Lab Tests/Clinical Trials, while Section 9 is dedicated to the next steps for each tool. The document is concluded with a respective section, where an outlook of the work done is summarised.



2 Iterative Co-Design Activities with End Users

At the beginning of the project, workshops were held with the end-users so that their requirements could be collected and satisfied from the beginning of the development of the tool.

On the other hand, within the two LITs carried out to date for this deliverable, the feedback from the end-users as well as their questions after having shown the development, has been key to improving the current quality of the tool, and defining the next steps to follow.

Bilateral meetings with individual end-users were held in case not all feedback could be processed during the workshops and LITs.

A more analytical description in regards to the overall co-designed methodology that was followed is described in D4.1 Co-Designed System Architecture.

ONCO-RISTE

End-user requirements were collected at the beginning of the project along with the technical requirements. From that point, the development of the tool as well as the next steps have been subject to compliance with these requirements.

Communication with clinical-oriented end-users has been established to understand and improve how ONCO-RISTE would work for the LITs. Risk factor lists and classification of the users in groups have been reviewed.

Following the 2nd LIT, communication has been consistently upheld with various end-users with the objective of comprehending and enhancing the outcomes that have been showed up to now. Furthermore, rule base creation, obtained from expert insights, has been embarked upon. Consequently, this will lead to the development of two distinct versions of the tool: one that is semi-empirical and another that operates in an unsupervised way.

ONCO-CAWA

Each end user's requirements for ONCO-CAWA have been collected in a series of workshops with the clinical and the user organization partners. They have been tabulated in D4.1, while their fulfilment is discussed in section 4.1.1. It is obvious from the information there that many of the requirements have already been fulfilled to some degree. The resulting first version of ONCO-CAWA has been demonstrated in both the first and second laboratory integration tests.

Beyond the demonstration, the current version of ONCO-CAWA is now accessible via both Apple Store and Google Play. Currently a demo study is being implemented and users will be invited into it from the clinical and the user organization partners, for them to have a hands-on experience with the software and come back with suggestions.



Finally, a workshop has been carried out regarding the data collection requirements of ONCOSCREEN that ONCO-CAWA needs to cover, but these requirements are not finalized yet, neither are they implemented in the app, apart from some generic ones on capturing physical activities, sleep, heart and nutrition that need to be specialized and augmented.

ONCO-CLIDE

The collection of end-user requirements for the AI-based Clinical Decision Support System (cDSS) as part of the T4.5 initiative has been a thoughtful and measured process, focusing on aligning the tool's development with the practical needs of clinicians and medical experts in colorectal cancer (CRC) screening.

At the outset of the project, a foundational step involved the collection of end-user requirements alongside the technical specifications. This initial phase was crucial in setting a baseline understanding of what the medical professionals anticipated from the cDSS, ensuring that the system's development was in line with real-world clinical needs and expectations.

Throughout the development of ONCO-CLIDE, the team has maintained open channels of communication with various end-users. This has allowed for a steady flow of information, albeit limited in scope, regarding how the system might best serve in clinical settings. The insights gathered have been valuable in guiding the refinement of the system.

In this context, the development has proceeded with a focus on adaptability and responsiveness to potential user needs. Recognizing the variability in feedback, the approach has been to build a system that is flexible and capable of evolving as more user interactions and experiences are gathered over time.

The team has also been proactive in considering various scenarios and potential user preferences, leading to the development of different operational modes of ONCO-CLIDE. This includes versions that cater to diverse clinical environments and requirements such as roles and different versions for each clinical center, ensuring that the system remains versatile and applicable across various CRC screening contexts.

Overall, the co-design activities have been characterized by a careful balance between userdriven insights and proactive development strategies. The aim has been to create a cDSS that is not only technologically advanced but also prepared to adapt and evolve as more user feedback becomes available, ensuring long-term relevance and effectiveness in the clinical setting.

ONCO-EVIDA

All end-user requirements and suggestions were tabulated and compiled (see 5.2.1) by the ONCO-EVIDA technical partners.



VITO hosted three meetings (30/11/23, 15/12/23 and 19/01/24) with end-user partners designated to ONCO-EVIDA to clarify some of the URs, affirm or revise priorities, and leave room for additional wishes and feedback.

All end-users also received time to provide feedback during the Q&A sessions of the two LIT meetings. Moreover, a first version of the ONCO-EVIDA dashboard is available at http://gi.184.203.22:88/. The end-users have the possibility to register and experiment with the initial functionalities that the dashboard provides. In addition, a set of datasets has been also included to demonstrate how the interaction with the graphs can be facilitated.

DATA FUSION

Data fusion has not received any specific end-user requirements yet. Currently data fusion is a research oriented task that aims to discover underlying risk factors from open source data. Any possible interesting results will be discussed with and evaluated from the end users. As the project progresses, the data fusion may apply advanced ensemble techniques to combine outputs of different tools and the respective user requirements may be adapted accordingly.

Regarding data lake that will be developed during the data fusion task, the development of which has just started, thus it has not received yet user requirements.



3 ONCO-RISTE Tool analysis and architecture

ONCO-RISTE is a semi-empirical stratification engine that aims to identify dependencies and reveal correlations among heterogeneous features such as demographic, behavioural, clinical and other variables, enabling the effective classification of individuals, both citizens and patients, into their respective risk-level.

The tool employs fuzzy and machine learning techniques to handle uncertainty, impreciseness, and vagueness in data interpretation. This approach allows for the finite interpretation of empirical rules from clinical experts in a probabilistic manner. This was the main reason on why fuzzy-based techniques were chosen.

ONCO-RISTE dynamically generates a 5 risk-level classification considering all factors, stressors, diagnostic results, and expert rules.

Addressing End-user and Technical Requirements

3.1.1 Addressing End User Requirements

Successful software development hinges on a thorough understanding of the end user's needs, preferences, and challenges. Through the end-user requirement process we identify, analyse, and incorporate users' requirements into the design and development phases. By prioritizing the end-user's perspective ONCO-RISTE tool ensures a seamless and user-centric experience.

ID	Description	Priority	Fulfilment
RISTE_UR1	The tool should be able to classify the risk in a 5-level stratification.	High	Partially fulfilled. At the current state of the approach, 3-level stratification is completed due to the amount of available data. A 5-level is planned for the 2 nd iteration.
RISTE_UR2	As user, I expect the tool to give me the time distribution of the risk based on my risk level (i.e., short vs long- term).	Medium	Planed for the 2 nd Iteration.

Table 3 ONCO-RISTE end-user requirements



RISTE_UR3	As an HCP user/patient, I expect to know the importance of the factors in the given risk level.	High	Expected to be in the next version of the approach.
RISTE_UR4	Tool should dynamically change the output if the patient changes the factors given.	High	Already satisfied. When the input of the user changes in ONCO-CAWA, a new calculation is made, and the risk level changes accordingly if needed.
RISTE_UR5	Tool must show the rules to the medical partners and give them the option to change them.	High	Expected to be in the next version of the approach.
RISTE_UR6	Tool must communicate the high- level information of risk levels with demographic data.	High	Planed for the 2nd Iteration. Connection with Data Fusion is prerequisite.

A total of six user requirements were collected, with the one related with the dynamic change of the output having been already satisfied at this state of the project. Moreover, ONCO-RISTE in the first year of the project managed to fulfil in total 2 of the requested requirements (**RISTE_UR01** and **RISTE_UR04**). More detailed information related with user requirements can be found in Deliverable D4.1.

3.1.2 Addressing Technical Requirements

Table 4 ONCO-RISTE technical requirements

ID	Description	Fulfilment
RISTE_TR1	ONCO-RISTE will be integrated with ONCO-CAWA	Fulfilled via Kafka SSL in LIT 2. ONCO-RISTE gathers patient's answers and then based on them calculates the risk score which then sends back to ONCO-CAWA.
RISTE_TR2	ONCO-RISTE will receive the semi- empirical rules from Retrospective CRC screening Data Collection & Analysis	Planed for the 2 nd Iteration



RISTE_TR ₃	ONCO-RISTE will be integrated with data fusion service	Fulfilled via Kafka SSL in LIT 2. Risk calculation score is sent to Data Fusion.
RISTE_TR4	ONCO-RISTE will implement a classification process based on ML algorithms	Fulfilled. A fuzzy version of a clustering method is used as current approach.
RISTE_TR ₅	ONCO-RISTE output will be a risk- based score for each individual	Fulfilled. Json output with risk-based score for each patient
RISTE_TR6	ONCO-RISTE will be integrated with all the previous tools via the virtual data lake and not directly	Planed for the 2nd Iteration
RISTE_TR7	An aggregator service will be implemented in order to collect all the data and transform them to an ONCO-RISTE input	Fulfilled. A python back-end service was implemented that acts as a middleware that stands in the middle of the ml module and other tools
RISTE_TR8	The ONCO-RISTE output will be saved to a dedicated database	Planed for the 2nd Iteration
RISTE_TR9	Authentication and password management will be implemented	Planed for the 2nd Iteration
RISTE_TR10	ONCO-RISTE will integrate with ONCO-CLIDE	Fulfilled via Kafka SSL in LIT 2. Risk calculation score is sent to ONCO- CLIDE and is depicted in the UI
RISTE_TR11	All components will communicate via a secure network	Planed for the 2nd Iteration
RISTE_TR12	All components will communicate with secure communication protocols	Fulfilled. Use of Kafka SSL when for exchanging messages which is considered a secure communication protocol and secures data transmission over a computer network

A total of twelve technical requirements were collected and linked with the user requirements. Six of them have been classified as high priority, and 7 of them are already fulfilled (**RISTE_TR1**,

ONCOSCREEN

RISTE_TR3, RISTE_TR4, RISTE_TR5, RISTE_TR7 , RISTE_TR10, RISTE_TR12). More information about the technical requirements, their link with user requirements, priority, and other comments can be found in-depth in Deliverable D4.1.

ONCO-RISTE Analysis

Software tool analysis refers to the process of evaluating and assessing ONCO-RISTE capabilities and features. This analysis is crucial for making informed decisions about which technologies to use in software development, testing or any other aspect of the software development life cycle.

Key aspects of ONCO-RISTE include:

Functionality

- Identifying dependencies and correlations among heterogeneous features.
- Effective classification of individuals into risk levels.
- Utilizes fuzzy and machine learning techniques to handle uncertainty and impreciseness.
- Allows for finite interpretation of empirical rules in a probabilistic manner.
- Dynamically generates a 5 risk-level classification considering various factors.

Ease of Use

- ONCO-RISTE tool coding language is Python, which is widely known and used in the data science community.
- Employs Django rest framework for the ONCO-RISTE backend, providing a robust and scalable architecture.

Performance

- Dynamic risk-level classification suggests adaptability to various scenarios.
- The combination of fuzzy logic and machine learning techniques may enhance the accuracy of the final response.

Reliability and Stability

• Fuzzy logic and machine learning techniques contribute to robust risk-level calculations.

Overall, ONCO-RISTE analysis helped to make decisions about the selection and adoption of tools in the software development process, aiming to enhance productivity, efficiency, and the overall success of the task.

ONCO-RISTE Innovation Aspects

ONCO-RISTE provides a 3 risk-level classification (and soon will offer a 5-level classification) using heterogeneous information from different sources such as the mobile app (ONCO-CAWA), the Data Fusion tool, and other tools of the ONCOSCREEN ecosystem.



In terms of innovative features, the tool extends beyond providing a single-value classification. It assigns a probabilistic score to each category, thereby offering clinicians a more comprehensive understanding of the individual's condition. For the first time, the planned stratification will incorporate environmental and socio-economic data based on the proposed methodology suggested from the end user experts in D2.1.

Moreover, this classification is not solely dependent on data derived from other tools. It also incorporates the expert knowledge base of the clinicians. This knowledge base can be dynamically adjusted to disregard certain factors in the final computation or to assign more (or less) weight to specific factors. These adjustments do not necessitate subsequent model training, distinguishing this approach from traditional Machine Learning algorithms.

ONCO-RISTE Functionalities and Design

A high level view of the system architecture is shown in Figure 1. ONCORISTE consists of two components 1) the backend module and 2) the fuzzy component.



ONCO-RISTE backend component

Figure 1 ONCOSCREEN System architecture.

The backend, implemented using the Django Rest Framework, serves as the middleware of ONCO-RISTE, orchestrating functions in data management, processing, and communication. The backend component gathers info from other tools, sourcing information from REST APIs provided by collaborative partners. It processes these incoming data, ensuring their integrity and compatibility for subsequent analysis by the fuzzy component. Functioning as the communication hub, the backend manages seamless interactions between the ONCO-RISTE tools and the fuzzy component. It facilitates a flow of information, ensuring that data from the tools are efficiently transmitted to the fuzzy algorithms for risk-level calculation. Upon receiving the risk calculation from the fuzzy component, the backend undertakes the task of transforming



the results into the agreed JSON format. Subsequently, it utilizes Kafka, a distributed event streaming platform, to transmit the processed results back to other ONCOSCREEN tools. This seamless integration through Kafka ensures efficient and real-time communication between ONCO-RISTE and its partner systems. Emphasizing security, the Django Rest Framework integrated into the backend ensures data protection during transmission and storage. Compliance with industry standards and best practices is prioritized to safeguard sensitive healthcare information. Furthermore, designed with scalability in mind, the backend ensures that the system remains responsive and efficient as the demand for ONCO-RISTE grows.

ONCO-RISTE fuzzy component

The fuzzy component of the tool is developed using Python. For the unsupervised version of the tool, Fuzzy C-means algorithm has been applied. Data is procured from the ONCORISTE backend module and undergoes a format verification prior to classification. Upon completion of the calculation the final outcome, which could be either a score-only output or a probabilistic output, is relayed back to the backend in JSON format. The backend module then assumes responsibility for facilitating communication with the remaining tools.

3.1.3 Functionalities

3.1.3.1 Receive patients' questionnaire answers from ONCO-CAWA

ONCO-RISTE is integrated with the ONCO-CAWA mobile application to consider user input in the risk calculation algorithms. This integration facilitates the extraction of valuable questionnaire answers from ONCO-CAWA, empowering ONCO-RISTE's fuzzy algorithm with pertinent input data for risk-level assessments.

Authorization Process

ONCO-RISTE initiates the integration by authorizing itself through a dedicated API, acquiring a JWT (JSON Web Token) for secure communication. The use of JWT tokens ensures secure authorization, safeguarding the integrity of data exchanged between ONCO-RISTE and ONCO-CAWA.

Token Utilization

Leveraging the obtained JWT token, ONCO-RISTE makes a subsequent request to the ONCO-CAWA API.

Questionnaire Data Retrieval

ONCO-RISTE gathers relevant questionnaire answers from ONCO-CAWA, extracting crucial information pertaining to the user's health status.

Fuzzy Algorithm Input

These gathered questionnaire answers serve as vital input for ONCO-RISTE's fuzzy algorithm, enhancing the precision and contextuality of the risk-level assessments.



3.1.3.2 Risk-level calculation

In the present methodology, the classification of individuals or patients into groups based on risk levels is accomplished through the use of a fuzzy clustering algorithm. This algorithm considers all pertinent information related to behavioural and clinical aspects gathered from the questionnaires. The output can be either a score-only output, which provides a singular risk level, or a probabilistic output, which offers the probability of the individual belonging to each of the groups.

Communication of risk-based score to other tools using Kafka-SSL

ONCO-RISTE extends its integration capabilities by securely transmitting its output to other tools, like ONCO-CLIDE or DATA-FUSION through Kafka SSL. This integration facilitates real-time collaboration by enabling the immediate transmission of the risk-level calculation and it establishes a reliable and encrypted communication channel. Kafka SSL ensures that all data transmitted are encrypted, safeguarding the confidentiality and integrity of sensitive health-related information. Furthermore, it ensures end-to-end encryption, significantly enhancing data security during transmission and minimizing the risk of unauthorized access, adhering to industry-standard security practices. Design

In Figure 1, along with the high level system architecture, an illustration of the architecture of the ONCO-RISTE tool is also presented. This visual representation provides a comprehensive overview of the system's structure, highlighting key components and their interactions. Referencing this figure will enhance understanding and facilitate discussions regarding the tool's design and functionality.

The specifics of ONCO-RISTE's design are intentionally omitted, acknowledging the intrinsic character of ONCO-RISTE as a backend tool. For a more detailed exposition of its design elements, please direct attention to Chapters 8.1 (ONCO-RISTE in the 1st LIT) and 8.6 (ONCO-RISTE in the 2ND LIT). These sections contain additional materials and print screens that comprehensively illustrate the tool's functionality.

3.1.4 ONCO-RISTE Data Flows

Please refer to deliverable D4.1 for a more detailed description of ONCO-RISTE data flow and how the tool stands to the whole ONCOSCREEN architecture.

In adherence to the 'Security by Design' philosophy, Kafka implementation and deployment completed by EXUS incorporates robust security measures, prominently featuring the integration of SSL (Secure Sockets Layer) for enhanced data protection and privacy. SSL serves as a cryptographic protocol, ensuring a secure communication channel between our Kafka brokers and clients.



D4.3 ONCOSCREEN Integrated Intelligent Platform for Citizens, Clinicians & Policy Makers (First version)



Figure 2 The ONCO-RISTE data flow.

By implementing Kafka SSL, we fortify our data pipelines against unauthorized access and eavesdropping, guaranteeing the confidentiality and integrity of the information exchanged within the Kafka ecosystem. This strategic inclusion aligns with our proactive approach to embed security measures at the core of our architecture, reinforcing our commitment to safeguarding sensitive data throughout the entire data streaming process.

In chapter 3.3 of deliverable D4.1 you can find details about Kafka SSL implementation, certificate management, and encryption protocols employed. This 'Security by Design' approach ensures that the data infrastructure not only meets industry standards but also establishes a resilient foundation for the secure and reliable exchange of information within ONCOSCREEN project.

ONCO-RISTE Trustworthiness

Dynamic Parametrisation of Fuzzy C-Means Algorithm

In the current approach a fuzzy clustering algorithm called Fuzzy C-Means is used. This algorithm is a fuzzy version of the C-Means clustering method where an instance, instead of belonging only to one cluster, could belong to one or more clusters with a membership degree. The higher the membership degree, the more common the instance is with other instances inside the same cluster. Advantages such as the flexibility among the results, having a membership degree to

ON SCREEN

each center and not a crisp value, and the ambiguous nature of the data, Fuzzy C-means is chosen as clustering mehod, surpassing other more known clustering methods such as K-means.

In the context of Fuzzy C-means, trustworthiness refers to the reliability of the clustering results, and it is determined by the optimal values of algorithm parameters. The most important parameter of the algorithm is the number of possible clusters. Although in the final approach, the number of clusters or groups to be used will be five, corresponding each one-to-one risk level, in the approach showed in the integration tests, in order not to set the number to a fixed value from the beginning, the Silhouette score is calculated. This value gives how good (or bad) an object has been classified, and can take values between -1 and 1, 1 being the best value possible.

Risks and Mitigation Measures

During all periods of the project, it is important to show that you have been aware of potential risks and that you have implemented mitigation measures to address them.

In this section, please align the risks with the ONCOSCREEN Risk Registry.

3.1.5 Risk 1 – Lack of initial data

Table 5 ONCO-RISTE Risk 1.

Risk Title	Lack of initial data	Status	Closed
Risk Category	Technical	Related Task	4.3
Risk Description			
The risk pertains to the potential inability to develop a reliable tool due to insufficient initial data. This could lead to inaccurate outputs, hindering the tool's effectiveness and usability.			
Responsible Partner	EXUS	Period Identified	Q2 2023
Pr	Probability Impact		
Ν	Medium	Me	dium
Mitigation Plan (Indicative)			
To address the initial data scarcity, we aim to identify open data registries associated with CRC. This will facilitate the creation of a preliminary tool, providing a foundation for further development.			
Comments			



Open data registry used: https://portal.gdc.cancer.gov/ . If further delays are observed the creation of synthetic data in collaboration with end user is planned.



4 ONCO-CAWA Tool analysis and architecture

ONCO-CAWA is the subjects' companion app, to be used in ONCOSCREEN studies for prospective data collection as well as analytics, feedback, and advice provision.

Addressing End-user and Technical Requirements

The end-user and technical requirements are detailed in D4.1. In the following sections we discuss their fulfilment.

4.1.1 Addressing End User Requirements

The fulfilment of the end-user requirements is tabulated in Table 5.

Table 5: Fulfilment of the end-user requirements.

ID	Description	Fulfilment
CAWA_UR1	As an ONCOSCREEN app user, I expect to have access to the devices necessary for the needed measurements.	Support for Garmin and Fitbit activity trackers, as well as any connected to Apple Health Kit has been implemented. Same for scales and other devices from iHealth.
CAWA_UR2	As an ONCOSCREEN app user, I expect the app translated to my native language.	The application supports translations to any language. Already translations for Bulgarian, Chinese Traditional, Dutch, English, Estonian, French, Greek, Italian and Spanish are implemented.
CAWA_UR3	As an ONCOSCREEN app user, I expect to be able to consent to the use of the app.	A mechanism of consents is already implemented that can be extended with as many different items as needed.
CAWA_UR4	As an ONCOSCREEN app user, I expect to consent to the processing of my data by ONCOSCREEN partners.	A mechanism of consents is already implemented that can be extended with as many different items as needed.
CAWA_UR5	As an ONCOSCREEN app user, I expect to read a privacy policy,	A mechanism of consents is already implemented that can be extended



	explaining to me why my data is being collected, who it is going to be shared with, how it is protected, what are my rights in this regard, before I give my consent.	with as many different items as needed.
CAWA_UR6	As an ONCOSCREEN app user, I need to be certain that my data is securely protected from unauthorized access, loss, destruction, modification.	The app is a Class I medical device, certified under the Medical Device Directive.
CAWA_UR7	As an ONCOSCREEN app user, I expect to read EULA/terms of use.	A configurable mechanism of consents has been implemented. It can be extended with as many different items as needed.
CAWA_UR8	As an ONCOSCREEN app user, I expect personalized recommendations to be delivered to me.	Mechanisms have been implemented for notifications (short messages) and dialogue (long interactive messages) delivery.
CAWA_UR9	As an ONCOSCREEN app user, I expect it available both for Android and iOS.	CAWA can be downloaded from both the Apple Store and Google Play.
CAWA_UR10	As an ONCOSCREEN app user, I expect it to have an intuitive UI.	CAWA is being implemented on top of the Healthentia mobile app that has been used by more than 1,500 users.
CAWA_UR11	As an ONCOSCREEN app user, I expect its UI to adapt to the expectations of my age group / personality.	No such mechanism is currently in place. Planned for the 2 nd iteration.
CAWA_UR12	As an ONCOSCREEN app user, I expect it to offer gamification features.	Currently users receive encouraging messages when they reach goals or answer questionnaires. This is to be expanded into a proper gamification mechanism.



CAWA_UR13	As an ONCOSCREEN app user, I expect it to show data from wearable activity trackers, either devices (e.g., Fitbit, Garmin, Polar) or services (e.g., Apple Health Kit, Health Connect).	Activity tracking is supported from Fitbit, Garmin and mobile phone's sensors. Also, any source integrated with Apple Health Kit is supported. Extensions are planned for more sources.
CAWA_UR14	As an ONCOSCREEN app user, I expect it to be using questionnaires for self-reporting PROM/PREM.	A questionnaire delivery and answer mechanism is already implemented. Questionnaires can be entered and updated using the Healthentia portal web app.
CAWA_UR15	As an ONCOSCREEN app user, I expect it to visualise data from diagnostic devices.	A screening tool visualization widget is being designed.
CAWA_UR16	As an ONCOSCREEN app user, I expect it to show CRC prevalence analysis from ONCO-EVIDA.	EVIDA analysis results will be shown in the screening tool visualization widget.
CAWA_UR17	As an ONCOSCREEN app user, I expect the app to present to me my risk results from ONCO-RISTE.	RISTE analysis results will be shown in the screening tool visualization widget.

4.1.2 Addressing Technical Requirements

The fulfilment of the technical requirements is tabulated in Table 6.

Table 6: Fulfilment of the end user requirements.

ID	Description	Fulfilment
CAWA_TR1	CAWA will be written in React Native, to support both iOS and Android devices from a single code base.	CAWA is written in React Native and already downloadable for Android and iOS from the relevant app stores.
CAWA_TR2	The app will use minimum text. All messages will be translated to the necessary languages.	CAWA is implemented following the guidelines for mobile applications supporting translations. It is already offered in Bulgarian, Chinese Traditional, Dutch, English, Estonian,



		French, Greek, Italian and Spanish. Any other language can be supported.
CAWA_TR ₃	CAWA will be integrated with devices for automatic data entry via the manufacturers' SDKs.	The integration of CAWA with the Apple Health Kit, iHealth and Fora via their respective SDK integrations.
CAWA_TR4	CAWA will be integrated with devices for automatic data entry via the manufacturers' APIs.	The communication between CAWA and Garmin & Fitbit via their respective APIs has been implemented.
CAWA_TR5	CAWA will be accepting manual input for devices that do not offer any radio communications.	Widgets have been implemented in CAWA to accept manual input for weight, blood pressure, blood glucose and SPO2 measurements.
CAWA_TR6	CAWA will be offered with an intuitive UI comprising single- purpose widgets.	The CAWA home page is already implemented as a collection of widgets.
CAWA_TR7	Both the main screen and the widgets of CAWA will have minimum text, based mainly on icons.	The CAWA homepage is implemented featuring icon-heavy widgets, and the widgets themselves have graphs and data entry controls.
CAWA_TR8	Application branding based on ONCOSCREEN.	A mechanism for branding studies is being finalized. This will allow CAWA to sport the banner, logo and color theme of the ONCOSCREEN project
CAWA_TR9	CAWA UI will adapt to age group expectations.	Currently not supported. Planned for the 2 nd iteration.
CAWA_TR10	Gamification features (goals & rewards) will be promoting CAWA usage.	Currently a notification-based mechanism has been implemented. This is to be expanded into a proper gamification mechanism.
CAWA_TR11	CAWA will be contacting the users with the recommendations	Both notification and dialogue delivery mechanisms have been



	generated by CLIDE. These should be easy to understand, trying different approaches for the same end-goal, attempting to match users' personality.	implemented. They can be used for delivering information derived by other ONCOSCREEN components. The content of the information is the responsibility of those components.
CAWA_TR12	CAWA will be providing optimum timing of messages to users, based on their app usage history.	CAWA asks users to accept having their use of it tracked. Only in that case can models of interaction been built and are consequently used to optimize interaction time.
CAWA_TR13	CAWA will be able to forward questionnaires to users, preferably validated ones.	The mechanism to present rich-text questionnaires to the users, with the questions being answered using a multitude of widgets has been implemented. The questionnaires used are the responsibility of the study design side, not CAWA.
CAWA_TR14	CAWA will be offering proper visualizations for the information collected from the screening tests.	A new widget will be designed and implemented, offering the information from the screening tests.
CAWA_TR15	CAWA will be offering proper visualizations for the information collected from activity tracking.	The physical activity and sleep widgets are implemented, offering visualizations of the data from activity tracking sources.
CAWA_TR16	CAWA should be able to get and offer users the information generated by RISTE in a comprehensive way.	The same widget for the screening tests will accommodate the risk assessment.
CAWA_TR17	CAWA should be offering the users the terms of use, EULA, privacy policy & consents, recording their acceptance.	A configurable mechanism for consents has been implemented. It will be tailored to the specific needs of ONCOSCREEN.
CAWA_TR18	CAWA should follow medical device standards to ensure data security.	CAWA is built upon the Healthentia mobile app. Healthentia is a CE- marked medical device class I,

ONCOSCREEN

		certified under MDD. This certification covers all data security concerns.
CAWA_TR19	CAWA is offering the collected information to the data fusion via the Healthentia API.	An API exposed by CAWA is implemented, offering all collected information to an authorized 3 rd party software via its endpoints.

ONCO-CAWA Analysis

To be a usable subject companion app that is capable of collecting information and displaying advice, ONCO-CAWA has not been designed from scratch. Instead, it is based on Innovation Sprint's Healthentia. Healthentia is a certified software device, partially fulfilling both the data collection and advice delivery needs of ONCOSCREEN.

Thus, the implementation followed the process outlined below:

- Matching of the technical requirements of ONCO-CAWA to the functionalities offered by Healthentia and performing a gap analysis.
- Modifying Healthentia to fully support functionality that is now partially supported.
- Extending Healthentia to provide new functionality.
- Repeating the previous two steps while involving ONCOSCREEN end users to maximize ONCO-CAWA acceptance probability.

Having followed this process thus far has led to a version of ONCO-CAWA presented via its functionalities in section 4.4. While still not at a level to be used in the ONCOSCREEN pilots, it is a mature app soon to be distributed to the partners for usage and feedback.

ONCO-CAWA Innovation Aspects

ONCO-CAWA is a subject companion app, addressing the dual need of collecting information from the subject and informing them. Although there is quite a bit of software engineering involved in its implementation, the real innovation lies in two aspects. Firstly, the decisions reached by ONCOSCREEN on what data is needed by the different systems and is thus collected by ONCO-CAWA. Secondly, on the advice it can deliver to its users via other ONCOSCREEN components.

ONCO-CAWA Functionalities and Design

The modules, implementation, and functionalities of ONCO-CAWA have been outlined in D4.1. In this section we will show how the functionalities have been addressed in the current version of ONCO-CAWA.


4.1.3 Functionalities

The different ONCO-CAWA functionalities are demonstrated by including actual screenshots from the working version of the application.

4.1.3.1 Registration & login

There are two ways to register to Healthentia, and hence ONCO-CAWA. The simplest way is to have a study investigator already pre-enrolled a subject, whereupon the subject proceeds logging in using the credentials they are provided. The process is shown in Figure 3. The subject taps on "Login" and find themselves in the credentials page.

Alternatively, the subject uses a registration code. Either the subject is already given a code from the investigators inviting them to use ONCO-CAWA, or the subject requests one. The process is shown in Figure 4. The subject taps on the "Request Code" link and lands on the request page with a form to ask for one, making sure to indicate ONCOSCREEN. If they have a code or receive one following the request process, they enter it and tap "Continue." Then, they land on the account creation page. Following account creation, the email verification process kicks in, as shown in Figure 5. The subject lands on the email verification page, whereupon they need to check their email client (and the spam folder) and click on the "Confirm email" link, to see in their browser the successful verification page. They can then proceed with the login.



Figure 3: Process for pre-enrolled subjects. Initial and login pages.

ON COS SCREEN



Figure 4: Process employing registration codes. Registration code, code request and account creation pages.



Figure 5: Email verification process. Verification page in the app, verification email and successful verification page in the browser.



10:21 🖬 🕲 🖬 🔸	@.₩	1% 10:22 8	• 2 5		কি 📲 না 91% 🛢	10:23 🖪 🖬 🤅	٠ (2	State al 91%
CONS	ENTS	<		STEP 1/3		<	• • • • STEP 2/3	3
Healthentia allows you to rep outcomes (e.g. symptoms), y and receive questionnaires re Aggregated data can be proc long-term research about the health. Sponsors (e.g. Pharm invite you to participate in res	ort and monitor your our activity (e.g. steps) lated to your conditior sesed for conducting influence of activity in aceutical companies) earch studies.	ns. Ent	er your v	veight ar	id height		0	es es
I have read and agreed with th Privacy Policy *	e full text of the		Weight	0	KG	1 Alexandre	<u>Je</u>	A B
I have read and agreed with th	e Terms of Use *					s	elect vour	aender
I am 18 years old and above *								5
Further to the privacy terms the above link, please provide you interested, to the following:	nat are presented in th r explicit consent, if	e	Height	0	СМ		Male	Female
Self-reporting of health-relate	d data *							
Contacted by sponsors for cli	nical studies	>		Continue				
I consent to tracking my App analytics and aggregated stat	usage for istics	*By provid alw	ding this informatio vays add this inforn	n we can provide be nation later by updat	tter coaching. You can ing your profile.			
Cont	nue							
							Continu	÷
) <		111	0	<		0	<
				0	×	111	0	× *

Figure 6: First time login process. Consent, body metrics and gender pages.

Up to this point the mobile app is agnostic to ONCOSCREEN. After login, it knows its user is an ONCO-CAWA user participating in some ONCOSCREEN study, hence the app is transformed into the ONCO-CAWA one, following the branding of ONCOSCREEN. The branding currently affects the primary and secondary colours, an ONCOSCREEN banner and the ONCOSCREEN logo. In the next version, more branding will be applied as explained in the following paragraphs.

No matter the registration process followed, after the first login the subject follows through the first login process shown in Figure 6. Initially they land in the consents page. The consents are dynamically built, so the page will be branded with ONCOSCREEN specific information in the next version. The subject needs to accept every item marked with an asterisk. A very important optional consent is that of tracking the app usage. If it is not accepted, then ONCO-CAWA will not be collecting data to build an app usage model for the subject, and offer personalized timing of the notifications.

The following three pages of the first-time login process are about entering the subject's weight and height (body metrics page), gender (gender page) and date of birth (date of birth page). The body metrics and date of birth pages will also be made dynamic in the future to allow for less detailed information if the ONCOSCREEN study participants decide so. E.g., the weight and height could be rounded, or more importantly the date of birth could be replaced by just year of birth.





Figure 7: Mini manual pages.

Finally, the subject goes through some screens of a mini manual as shown in Figure 7, that will also be branded in the next version.

4.1.3.2 Home page

After login, the subject lands in the home page, shown in Figure 8. This is where ONCO-CAWA diverges from the parent Healthentia application and its ONCOSCREEN features are experienced. The page consists of different widgets, serving to either collect data from the subject, inform them, or do both.





Figure 8: Home page.

4.1.3.3 Connection of activity trackers

After first login, the subject should connect their activity tracker. To do so, they access the sidebar via the top right drawer icon, see Figure 9, first screenshot. There are currently four options. Three of them are for the Fitbit, Garmin, and Polar activity trackers. The fourth option depends on the OS of the phone. For Android there is Android Sync, which uses the phone's sensors, while for iOS there is Apple Health, which uses whatever source connected to it.

Selecting e.g. Garmin, the subject goes along Garmin's process for connecting their Garmin account to ONCO-CAWA, including entering their credentials, accepting what is to be shared with ONCO-CAWA and agreeing to terms, as shown in the 2nd to fourth screenshots of Figure 9. After the completion of the process, the subject can verify that Garmin is connected, see final screenshot of Figure 9. Taping again will disconnect Garmin.



08:17 🖪	ទិក Men	il 100%	08:17 🖻.		Sata 100%	08:18 🖻		100% B
20 jan	ID: 2YCF9 lit01@gmail.com		X A Garmin I https://ss	Login o.garmin.com		X A Garmin I https://co	Login nnect.garmin.com	
10			C	cnnec	t	C	cnnec	t
	ACTIVITY TRACKING	^	and the second		-	:#	ealthentic	z
Q.	FITBIT SYNC:	SET UP				Control the int	formation you	ı share.
eDia	GARMIN SYNC: ANDROID SYNC: POLAR BELT SYNC:	SET UP ENABLE SET UP	Sign Ir	ı		You get to decide with Healthentia information Heal	e what informatio Demo, as well as Ithentia Demo sh	on you share s what nares with
	 ABOUT TUTORIAL 		Email Addre	ess *		your Garmin Cor these selections Connect settings	nect account. Yc at any time in yo	ou can change ur Garmin
Pending	MY CONSENTS Self-reporting of health-related data	•	Password *			Data shared fron Healthentia Dem Acti	n Garmin Connec o app ivities	ct to the
Exp	Contacted by sponsors for clinica studies				Show	Daily Health	Stats 💽	
	I consent to track [*] App usage for al		Remem	iber <u>Fo</u> Pasi	orgot sword?	Healthentia Dem	o Privacy Policy	
Activity	From Innovation Sprint						Save	
	, store sergetelete e ● n este			Sign In			Cancel	
III			111	0	<	III	0	<



Figure 9: Activity tracker connection - Garmin.



4.1.3.4 <u>Profile</u>

Next the subject can visit their profile page, by tapping on the user icon on top of the sidebar. Initially the profile has just the mandatory information collected at the registration process, as shown in Figure 10 (left). The subject can opt to enter any other data they want, resulting to more complete info as shown in Figure 10 (right). Such non-mandatory info can be used to personalize dialogues offered by ONCO-CAWA or allow ONCOSCREEN study investigators contact the subject.

09:04 🖪	त्रि: LTET .III 98% 🛢	09:05 🖪	ଲୁ₊ _{ute1} ,,⊪ 98%∎			
K MY PROFILE		K MY Pr Aristodemos	ROFILE Phevmatikakis			
Personal Information		Personal Informatio	n			
First Name		Aristodemos				
Last Name Pnevmatikakis						
lit01@gmail.com		lit01@gmail.com				
Phone Number		Phone Number				
26/9/1971		26/9/1971				
Gender Male	•	Gender	Male 🔹			
Language English	•	Language	English 👻			
Body Measurements Height 184 cm Weight ————————————————————————————————————	80.5 kg	Body Measurement Height 184 cm	s Weight 80.5 kg			
	<	(



4.1.3.5 Data collection widgets

There are several data collection widgets on the home page, detailed below.

The physical activity widget primarily displays steps walked, but also floors climbed, calories burned and minutes of moderate or intense activity. All this info comes from the activity tracker. There are daily, weekly, and monthly views, as shown in Figure 11.





Figure 11: Physical activity widget.



Figure 12: Sleep widget.



The sleep widget displays time spent sleeping, dividing it to the light, deep, REM and awake phases. The division is only possible if the information source is an activity tracker. Manual input of time to bed and time awaken is also possible. There are daily, weekly, and monthly views, as shown in Figure 12.

The heart rate widget also shows information from the activity tracker. The daily, weekly, and monthly views display the resting and the maximum heart rate of the selected period, as shown in Figure 13.



Figure 13: Heart rate widget.

The weight widget allows manual entry of weight, but also supports some Bluetooth enabled scales. Weight entry is shown in Figure 14. The entered information can be viewed in the daily, weekly, and monthly views.

The liquids widget allows manual entry of liquid consumption. Currently the primary category is water, followed by alcohol, beverages, coffee, and tea, see Figure 15. The liquids of interest might become selectable in a next version. The information is shown per day, and the subject can select any date to add any missing logs of liquids consumption.





Figure 14: Weight widget.



08:23 🖪		জি- 📖 .ill 99% 🛢
<	LIQUIDS	Ξ
JANUARY 2024	4	
<pre>N MON TUE 15 16</pre>	WED THU FRI 17 18 19	20
You a	re drinking tod	ay
	Water	
Θ	6	(+)
Quick Add		
+ 250ml	+ 500ml	+ 750ml
c	Other liquids	
Coffee	+ Tea	- 1 +
Beverages	+ Alcohol	- 1 +
	1 unit equal to	
1 unit = 💡	Y	
111	0	<

Figure 15: Liquids widget.



Figure 16: Nutrition widget.



The nutrition widget allows manual entry of food consumption. The food categories presented to the subject are configurable by the study investigator, so the categories shown in Figure 16 are just an example. The information is shown per day, and the subject can select any date to add any missing logs of food consumption.

More widgets might be implemented as the needs of ONCOSCREEN are consolidated. One widget already under design is the clinical widget, where the subject will be able to enter selected results of the clinical tests. The selection will be carried out by the study investigator, but the different screening and risk prediction tools of ONCOSCREEN will certainly be selected. The data entry will be either manual, or automatic, ingesting data from ONCOSCREEN's Kafka topics. An initial such ingestion mechanism, without any user interface, for risk prediction is shown in Figure 17.



Figure 17: Ingesting Kafka messages for automatic data inclusion in ONCO-CAWA.

4.1.3.6 **Questionnaire answering**

Questionnaires are pushed to the subjects following the schedule selected by the study investigator. When new questionnaires are waiting for answer, the questionnaire widget appears on the home page, see Figure 18.

Scrolling to any of the pending questionnaires and tapping on it opens the questionnaire for answering. The process is shown in Figure 18. There are many different UI controls to facilitate answering, ranging from simple ones like option selection, numeric and text entry, to elaborate ones like uploading images, or selecting parts in body maps.

Answered questionnaires can be viewed via the eDiary widget, where all the questionnaires of a selected week are listed. Tapping on a list item displays the questions and provided answers, as shown in Figure 19.

ON COS SCREEN



Figure 18: Answering a questionnaire.





Figure 19: Browsing answers in the eDiary widget.

4.1.3.7 Virtual coach

The virtual coach is the ONCO-CAWA element for delivering advice from ONCOSCREEN to the subject. The coach can be accessed via the widget in the home screen to embark in the predefined dialogue on providing help with the app, or the user can select the dialog they have just been notified for. Notification warnings appear as numeric bobbles in the bell icon of the home screen. Tappin on the bell, the notification page opens, shown in Figure 20 (left). Selecting an unread notification for a dialogue (designated by the coach face-like icon), the subject runs through the dialogue, reading the messages and selecting one of the possible responses, as shown in Figure 20 (centre and right).



08:25 🖪		€, vai ,iii 99%∎	08:25 🖪		🤶 Voo) 	08:26 🖪		Ret Liter .il 99%
<	NOTIFICATIONS	•••	<	CHATBOT		<	CHATBOT	
• 4	Notification https://www.youtube.com/v	05/12/2023 vatch?v=l	Hi there, I about ber physical o	have a new tip for nefits related to activity!	you	Hi there, I about be physical o	have a new tip fo nefits related to activity!	pr you
Q	Notification https://www.youtube.com/v	05/12/2023 vatch?v=l	Tell me	more!			Tell	me more!
•	Message from Coach The coach has something to	01/12/2023 say.	No than intereste	k you, I am not ed.		Physical o life longer	activity can make r :Did you know th	your hat a 5-
• 💇	Message from Coach The coach has something to	01/12/2023 say.				equates t expectan	o ~4 years greate cy?	er life
• 💇	Message from Coach The coach has something to	01/12/2023 o say.				Was this I	nelpful?	
•	Message from Coach The coach has something to	01/12/2023 say.				Thanks fo	r letting me know	es, thanks!
•	Message from Coach The coach has something to	01/12/2023 say.				I want to	o discuss someth	ing
•	Message from Coach The coach has something to	01/12/2023 say.				else.	ove	
•	Message from Coach The coach has something to	01/12/2023 say.						
٢	Message from Coach Coach has something to say	30/11/2023						
		<		0	<		0	<

Figure 20: ONCO-CAWA notifications and running a dialogue via the virtual coach.

4.1.4 ONCO-CAWA Data Flows

ONCO-CAWA is a mobile app, backed by the backend of Innovation Sprint's Healthentia. The backend provides the API to communicate both with the mobile app, but also with the rest of ONCOSCREEN, to offer data. This is facilitated by a data ingestion service. Data is collected by ONCO-CAWA employing different mechanisms:

- The subject manually enters data in ONCO-CAWA.
- Devices have their data ingested by ONCO-CAWA when integrated via an SDK.
- Devices have their data ingested by Healthentia backend when integrated via an API.
- ONCOSCREEN data (from screening tools and risk predictors) is ingested by Healthentia backend from the Kafka topics via a Kafka ingestion service (1st option)
- ONCOSCREEN data are centrally sent to Healthentia backend (2nd option)

The API of Healthentia that facilitates all these data transfers is quite mature, but changes are expected to support the ONCOSCREEN-specific data. It is currently organised in different controllers (see part of its Swagger UI in Figure 21) as follows:

- Account: Authentication mechanism for the SW entities
- Aggregations: Get individual attributes for all in a study
- Vitals: Similar, only for vital signs
- Data provider: Get answers, scores, exercise sessions, and custom information fields



🕒 Swagger,	Select a definition v3	×
	Authora	• 🔒
Aggregations Retrieves ordered to the startinged p	d by kI daily aggregations for a requested type in a bailch of maximum 1000 records. In order to continue the iteration, pass the Id value of the test received record of the bail ampresiant.	^{ith} ^
CEI /v3/aggregations/{stu	dyId)/Steps/{startingId}	~ ≜
CEI /v3/aggregations/{stu	dyId)/Floors/(startingId)	✓ ∅
CEI /V3/aggregations/{stu	dyId)/Calories/{startingId}	~ ≜
CEI /V3/aggregations/{stu	dyId)/Distance/{startingId)	✓ ≜
CEI /V3/aggregations/{stu	dyīd)/Elevation/(startingīd)	✓ ≜
CEI /V3/aggregations/{stu	dyId)/Alcohol/(startingId)	✓ ∅
CEI /v3/aggregations/{stu	dyId)/Coffee/(startingId)	✓ ∅
CEI /V3/aggregations/{stu	dyīd)/Refreshment/(startingīd)	~ ≜
CEI /V3/aggregations/{stu	dyīd)/īea/{startingId}	✓ ≜
CEI /V3/aggregations/{stu	dyīd)/Water/{startingīd}	✓ ≜
CEI /V3/aggregations/{stu	dyīd)/BloodOxygen/(startingīd)	~ ≜
CEI /V3/aggregations/{stu	dyīd)/HeartRate/(startingīd)	✓ ∅
CEI /V3/aggregations/{stu	dyīd)/Intensity/{startingId}	~ ≜
CEI /V3/aggregations/{stu	dyId)/Sleep/{startingId}	✓ ∅
Vitals Retrieves ordered by Id vitel sign persensater.	mis for a requested type in a balds of maximum 1000 records. In order to continue the literation, pass the ld value of the test received record of the batch to the starting/d	^
CEI /v3/vitals/{studyId}/	BloodOxygen/(startingId)	✓ ≜
CEI /v3/vitals/{studyId}/	BloodPressure/{startingId}	✓ ∅
CEI /v3/vitals/{studyId}/	Weight/(startingId)	✓ ∅
Account		^
V3/account/Login Logi	in and create new access token and refresh token.	✓ ≜
/v3/account/RefreshTo	ktiff Generater new access taken with the given refeath taken.	✓ ≜
Alert		^
CEI /V3/alert/{studyId)	Natives alers for the requested studyid in a batch of maximum 1000 records. Result set is ordered ascending based on the id field. Is order to continue the iteration, pass the id value or ast received record of the batch to the startinging parameter.	m v
DataProvider		^
CEI /v3/data-provider/ans	WOPS Request questionnaires answers data for a specific study.	✓ ≜
CEI /v3/data-provider/sco	PCS Retrieves scores for a specified study within a specified time range. The result will be a churked set of scores. Each churk costains up to 1000 scores.	✓ ≜
CEI /v3/data-provider/que	estionnaires Request questionnaire's into for a specific study.	✓ ≜
/v2/data_provides /phyciological	Request physiological data for a specific study. Endpoint is deprecated, it is strongly recommended to access APVr: \/2ibggsegations/for physiological data and \/2\/baint vital signs.	~~~ ≜
CEI /v3/data-provider/exe	PPCISES Request exercise data for a specific study.	✓ ê
CEI /v3/data-provider/cus	tom-fields/subject Request custom fait data for a specific subject.	∨ ê
GEI /v3/data-provider/cus	tom-fields/study Request custom field data for a specific study.	✓ ≜

Figure 21: API endpoints offered by ONCO-CAWA for the provision of the collected information to ONCOSCREEN.

Risks and Mitigation Measures



In the following subsections the risks related to the design, implementation, and usage on ONCO-CAWA are detailed. The first pair are universal across ONCOSCREEN, while the second pair are specific to ONCO-CAWA.

4.1.5 Risk 1 – Lack of interaction between technical/clinician/end-users

Table 7: ONCO-CAWA Risk 1 - Lack of end-user engagement.

Risk Title	Lack of interaction between technical/clinician/en	Status	Open		
	u-users				
Risk Category	Stakeholder Engagement	Related Task	Т1.3		
Risk Description					
The technical and non-technical sides fail to interact to get well-defined requirements.					
Responsible Partner	ICCS	Period Identified	Q1 2023		
Pr	robability	Impact			
	Low	High			
Mitigation Plan (Indicative)					
Early interaction since kick-off for requirements. Involvement of the end-users, as discusses in section 2.2.					
Comments					
N/A					

4.1.6 Risk 2 – Lack of end-user engagement

Table 8: ONCO-CAWA Risk 2 - Lack of end-user engagement.

Risk Title	Lack of end-user	Status	Open
	engagement		



Risk Category Stakeholder Engagement		Related Task	T2.4		
Risk Description					
End-users fail to properly specify the data collection needs, and/or do not give actionable feedback on ONCO-CAWA.					
Responsible SERVTECH Partner		Period Identified Q1 2023			
Pr	obability	Impact			
	Low	High			
Mitigation Plan (Indicative)					
Early involvement of the end-users, as discusses in section 2.2.					
Comments					
N/A					

4.1.7 Risk 3 – Inefficient tools

Table 9: ONCO-CAWA Risk 3 - Inefficient tools.

Risk Title	Inefficient tools	Status	Open		
Risk Category	Technical	Related Task	Т4.4		
Risk Description					
Difficulties in delivering suitable and efficient tools (mobile app).					
Responsible Partner	iSPRINT	Period Identified	Q2 2023		
Probability		Impact			
	Low	High			



Mitigation Plan (Indicative)

Adherence to requirements. Close monitoring of scientific and technological progress through the Technology Steering task. More tests before delivery to the end users will be performed

Comments

N/A

4.1.8 Risk 4 – End-User engagement with the mobile app

Table 10: ONCO-CAWA Risk 4 - End User engagement with the mobile app.

Risk Title	End User engagement with the mobile app	Status Open				
Risk Category	Stakeholder Engagement	Related Task	Т4.4			
Risk Description						
Low adherence to data collection protocol in trials.						
Responsible Partner	iSPRINT	Period Identified	Q2 2023			
Pr	robability	Impact				
	Low	High				
	Mitigation Pla	n (Indicative)				
End-user education: Demonstration of ONCO-CAWA to the end-users; hands-on training sessions. Gamification features in the app to make it more appealing.						
Comments						
N/A	N/A					



5 Clinical Decision Support System Tool analysis and architecture (ONCO-CLIDE)

The ONCOSCREEN AI-based Clinical Decision Support System (cDSS), named ONCOCLIDE, is being developed in collaboration with medical partners as part of the T4.5 initiative, is specifically tailored to advance the detection of colorectal cancer (CRC). This system is designed to support clinicians and medical experts, primarily in CRC screening processes. It does so by employing smart suggestions, utilizing the wealth of data from the ONCOSCREEN data lake and integrating various innovative methods and modules from Work Package 3 (WP3). ONCO-CLIDE focuses on enhancing the accuracy and efficiency of CRC detection through these intelligent recommendations. Its main goal is to aid in more effective and informed clinical decision-making during the screening phase, contributing to the early and precise identification of CRC.

Addressing End-user and Technical Requirements

5.1.1 Addressing End User Requirements

	ONCO-CLIDE
CLIDE_UR1: N	veed to have precise diagnosis of presence or absence of malignancy
CLIDE_UR2: p	positive/negative predictive value (high sensitivity and specifity)
CLIDE_UR3: d	letect precancerous lesions and degree of dysplasia
CLIDE_UR4: d	listinguish the stage of malignacy as well the molecular subtype / mutational profile of the tumor.

Figure 22 ONCO-CLIDE End User Requirements.

5.1.2 Addressing Technical Requirements

ONCO-CLIDE	PRIORITY
CLIDE_TR1 (F): Integration with the various diagnostic solutions proposed in this project via the virtual data lake	High-Mandatory
CLIDE_TR2 (F): Integration/communication with the clinical center's systems to receive data from colonoscopies, CT scans, biopsies etc.	High-Mandatory
via the virtual data lake	
CLIDE_TR3 (F): The system should be able to consider the individual's risk level provided from ONCO-RISTE (T4.3) when formulating	High-Mandatory
recommendations.	о ,
CLIDE_TR4 (F): The system must include a Virtual Tumor board that facilitates communication between doctors. This will be included	High-Mandatory
in the web interface.	
CLIDE_TR5 (F): The system should be able to perform correlation-based classification of citizens/cases across various	High Mandatony
adenoma-carcinoma sequence levels (0, I, II, III, IV) based on the European CRC guidelines	righ-Manuatory
CLIDE_TR6 (F): The system should generate a set of recommendations based on the diagnostic results, classification level (staging) and	High Mandatony
individual risk level.	High-Ivianuatory
CLIDE_TR7 (F): Interaction between doctors and ONCO-CLIDE needs to happen through a dedicated web interface	High-Mandatory
CLIDE_TR8 (F): There needs to be an authentication system for the web platform with different roles.	High-Mandatory

Figure 23 ONCO-CLIDE Technical Requirements.

You may find more details of the above user and technical requirements on the deliverable D4.1 chapter 6.12.

ONCO-CLIDE Innovation Aspects

As the proposal also highlights there is a significant gap in current clinical Decision Support Systems: the lack of tools specifically designed for CRC. This gap is addressed by our team's innovative approach. Central to our innovation is the integration of new non-invasive diagnostic methods that are also being tested during the course of the project. These methods will be



incorporated into our system not only for display but also for making intelligent, data-driven recommendations. Furthermore, the incorporation of ONCO-RISTE enhances the system's capability. It allows for the generation of personalized suggestions, taking into account the user's lifestyle choices and a range of other risk factors. This personalized approach marks a significant advancement in the field of CRC detection.

ONCO-CLIDE Functionalities and Design

5.1.3 Functionalities

ONCO-CLIDE can be thought of as being divided into three parts/modules. The first one is the web interface that displays the data from the various project sources. The second one is the suggestion models that will provide assistance during the diagnostic process and the classification model that will output the stage of cancer. Finally, the third part is the virtual tumour board where doctors will be able to communicate on a specific case.

The fiunctionalities below are still in a prototype stage and changes might be made during the course of the project.

5.1.3.1 Web Interface

The web interface of ONCO-CLIDE is designed for ease of use, ensuring that all patient data and analytics are readily accessible to clinicians. It features a user-friendly dashboard that aggregates data from electronic health records, imaging systems, and other relevant sources, presenting a comprehensive patient profile. Secure login mechanisms ensure patient confidentiality, while intuitive navigation allows for quick access to various modules such as the suggestion engine and virtual tumour board.

5.1.3.2 Suggestion and classification models

Central to ONCO-CLIDE's functionality are its suggestion and classification models. Leveraging machine learning algorithms, these models analyse patient data to offer diagnostic suggestions and predict cancer stages. The suggestion model acts as a second opinion, offering diagnostic recommendations based on current guidelines and training data. The classification model employs advanced analytics to accurately stage the cancer, considering factors like tumour size, lymph node involvement, and metastasis, which are crucial for determining the appropriate treatment protocol.

5.1.3.3 Virtual tumour board

The Virtual Tumour Board is an integral component of ONCO-CLIDE, providing a straightforward platform for medical professionals to discuss patient cases. It is a space where doctors can gather online to exchange insights and opinions, ensuring a collaborative approach to cancer care. This feature supports real-time sharing of patient data and expert recommendations, streamlining the decision-making process for effective treatment planning. Its user-friendly interface is



designed to be accessible, promoting regular use and enhancing collective expertise in patient management.

5.1.4 Design

A high-level technical design of ONCO-CLIDE is depicted in Figure 5.1. It incorporates a central backend developed with Django. Django is a high-level Python web framework that encourages rapid development and clean, pragmatic design. It's known for its robustness and scalability, making it a suitable choice for handling the complex data interactions required by ONCO-CLIDE. This backend is responsible for managing interactions with the frontend elements of the system. Given the distinct computational requirements of the machine learning models, during the inference phase, a separate backend is designated for these tasks. This separation ensures that the processing demands of the machine learning operations do not interfere with the overall system performance.

On the frontend, ONCO-CLIDE is currently divided into two main sections. The first is the diagnostics interface, which is linked to a Kafka data stream. This setup is chosen for its efficiency in handling real-time data, which is essential for the diagnostic processes within the system. The second section is the virtual tumour board, a platform for medical professionals to discuss patient cases.

Both frontend components are built using JavaScript, with the React framework. React is selected for its effectiveness in developing user interfaces that are both functional and adaptable. This decision aligns with the requirement for a responsive and interactive user experience in medical diagnostic settings. While the two frontend components are separate as of now, there is consideration for their integration later in the project development.



Figure 24 ONCO-CLIDE General design.

During this phase of the project, our efforts have been concentrated on developing the diagnostics frontend and the central backend. This stage has been crucial in laying the foundational structure for the ONCO-CLIDE. Below, we have provided some preliminary visuals



of the user interface. Please note that these are from an early stage of development and the interface is still being actively worked on.



Figure 25 Welcome screen.

€ ⊘	
T T	
Welcome! Please create an account.	
Your Email rame@example.com	
Password	
Next> Already have an account? Sign in	

Figure 26 Signup page.



ON ON SCREEN CDSS				🔒 Home	Cases + Add Case	2 Profile
		Your Cas	es			
Welcome		Status	ID	Start Date	Case Name	
Den Pol		1	ABC12345	01-07-2023	Lorem Ipsum	
Welcome back to your workspace.		2	XYZ67890	02-07-2023	Dolor est	
0		1	PQR45678	03-07-2023	Erhtom Ruoy	
A DECEMBER OF A		1	DEF98765	04-07-2023	Mim Jin-Ko	
		2	GHI54321	05-07-2023	Flare	
Your Notifications						
Lorem ipsum dolor sit amet, consectetur adipiscing elit. Ut enim ad minim ven 1501						
Lorem ipsum dolor sit arnet, consectetur adipiscing elit. Ut enim ad minim ven 1434						
Lorem ipsum dolor sit amet, consoctetur adipiscing elit. Ut enim ad minim ven 1321						
View All Updates						
		1 - 5 of 2 Pages		You are	on Page: 1 5 v	

Figure 28 Main dashboard.

SCREEN CD	ss		A Home
All Cases			
Q Search		= Filters	
Status	ID	Start Date	Case Name
1	ABC12345	01-07-2023	Lorem Ipsum
2	XYZ67890	02-07-2023	Dolor est
1	PQR45678	03-07-2023	Erhtom Ruoy
1	DEF98765	04-07-2023	Mim Jin-Ko
2	GHI54321	05-07-2023	Flare
1 - 5 of 2 Pages			You are on Page: 1 5 V

Figure 27 Cases page.



ON OSCREEN cDSS		🔒 Home	Cases	+ Add Case	2 Profile
	Personal Info DEN POL Maintainer Email: dpolyzos@konnektable.com Institution: Ministry Of Health-Greece	∠ Edit			
	Language settings Select language EN Y				

Figure 30 Patient page.

SCREEN cDSS				1	Home	Cases	+ Add Case	盘 P
ID: ABC12345	SUM					Star	t Date: 05/08/2	2022
Early Diagnostics	Colonoscopy I	maging Lab Tests	Reports					
Early Diagnostics			Sug	gestions				
ONCO-VOC		ONCO-NMR	• Lor	em ipsum dolor sit amet, consectetur i	adipiscing el	it. Ut enim ad n	ninim veniam, quis r	nostrud
Negative		 Positive 	exc	rcitation ullamco laboris nisi ut aliquip e	x ea commo	do consequat.		
ONCO-CRISP	R	ONCO-CTC	• Lor	em ipsum dolor sit amet, consectetur a rcitation ullamco laboris nisi ut aliquip e	adipiscing el ex ea commo	it. Ut enim ad n do consequat.	ninim veniam, quis r	nostrud
Positive		Negative	• Lor exe	em ipsum dolor sit amet, consectetur a rcitation ullamco laboris nisi ut aliquip e	adipiscing el ix ea commo	it. Ut enim ad n do consequat.	ninim veniam, quis r	nostrud
			• Lor	em ipsum dolor sit amet, consectetur a rcitation ullamco laboris nisi ut aliquip e	adipiscing el x ea commo	it. Ut enim ad r do consequat.	ninim veniam, quis r	nostrud
Risk Score			• Lor	em ipsum dolor sit amet, consectetur i	adipiscing el	it. Ut enim ad r	ninim veniam, quis r	nostrud
ONCO-RISTE	RISK F	ACTORS						
Risk Level0: 32.26% Risk Level1: 41.11%	Tobacco Smoking Status:	Current Smoker						
Risk Level2: 26.62%	Tissue or Organ of Origin:	Not Reported						

Figure 29 Profile screen.



5.1.5 ONCO-CLIDE Data Flows



Figure 31 ONCO-CLIDE Data Flows.

The analytical data flows of ONCOCLIDE are described thoroughly in D4.1 chapter 3.2.13.3 the general data flow looks as in Figure 31

ONCO-CLIDE Trustworthiness

There has been some preliminary work on the selection of the predictive algorithms, though due to the lack of data at this stage of the project no final decisions have been made on this part. In selecting an algorithm for the Clinical Decision Support System, emphasis will be placed on performance metrics such as accuracy, sensitivity, and specificity, ensuring effective colorectal cancer identification. The algorithm will be rigorously evaluated for biases to ensure equitable decision-making across different groups. Additionally, robustness and generalizability will be key criteria, requiring the algorithm to perform reliably under various conditions and patient populations. This comprehensive approach ensures the algorithm is not only technically proficient but also clinically relevant.

Risks and Mitigation Measures

5.1.6 Risk 1 - Availability of early diagnostic data

ONCOSCREEN

Table 6 ONCO-CLIDE Risk 1.

Risk Title	Availability of early diagnostic data	Status	Open		
Risk Category	Overall	Related Task	4.5		
	Risk Des	cription			
The data from tool development of AI	s of WP3 will be available v tools	ery late in the project	affecting		
Responsible Partner	KONN	Period Identified	Q2 2023		
Pro	obability	Im	pact		
Ν	Medium	Н	ligh		
	Mitigation Pla	n (Indicative)			
Continuous monitoring of the progress of data collection together with the project coordination and possible use of only initially collected data as a placeholder until the total amount is collected.					
Comments					
N/A					

5.1.7 Risk 2 – Quality of early diagnostic data

Table 7 ONCO-CLIDE Risk 2.

Risk Title	Quality of early diagnostic data	Status	Open		
Risk Category	Overall	Related Task	4.5		
	Risk Des	cription			
The data collected from the early diagnostic methods of WP_3 might be of low quality					
Responsible Partner	KONN	Period Identified	Q2 2023		



Probability	Impact			
Low	Low			
Mitigation Plan (Indicative)				
Selection of specific algorithms that take into consideration any data quality limitations.				
Comments				
N/A				

5.1.8 Risk 3 - Availability of traditional diagnostic data

Table 8 ONCO-CLIDE Risk 3.

Risk Title	Availability of early diagnostic data	Status	Open		
Risk Category	Overall	Related Task	4.5		
	Risk Des	cription			
Some data need t partners might be u	to be acquired from tradi unwilling or unable to provi	tional diagnostic met ide them due to the se	hods, and the clinical nsitive nature of them.		
Responsible Partner	KONN	Period Identified	Q1 2024		
Pro	obability	Im	pact		
	High	Н	ligh		
	Mitigation Pla	n (Indicative)			
There have been two approaches considered as a resolution to this. The first is to avoid any complicated integration and have manual input fields on the cDSS platform. The second is to run a different local server on each clinical center so no data leaves the hospital					
Comments					
N/A					

5.1.9 Risk 4 - Participation of clinical partners

Table 9 ONCO-CLIDE Risk 4.

Risk Title	Availability of early diagnostic data	Status	Open			
Risk Category	Overall	Related Task	4.5			
	Risk Des	cription				
The intelligent sug empirical observati	gestions that we are going ions of the clinical staff, so	to implement, are par their participation is c	tially based on rucial to achieve this.			
Responsible Partner	KONN	Period Identified	Q1 2024			
Pro	obability	Im	pact			
	Low	High				
	Mitigation Pla	n (Indicative)				
Constant communication from the project coordination and constant channels of communication						
Comments						
N/A	N/A					



6 ONCO-EVIDA Tool analysis and architecture

According to the GA, ONCO-EVIDA is to be a "powerful instrument for regional and national policymakers to enable them to combine and interpret results using user-friendly dashboards for more efficient and evidence-based decisions".

As an intelligent analytics dashboard, it will integrate data from diverse sources to generate userfriendly visualizations and recommendations, with a focus on CRC risk factors and screening participation factors.

Users can upload and access their data, generate charts and customize (and save) their own dashboards while the tool generates concrete recommendations based on their queries.

A more comprehensive conceptual description can be found in D4.1 (section 3.2.14.1).

Addressing End-user and Technical Requirements

In total 20 ONCO-EVIDA end-user requirements are listed in detail in D4.1 (section 6.14.1) and 23 technical requirements for ONCO-EVIDA are listed in detail in D4.1 (section 6.14.2). In this iteration ONCO-EVIDA proceed in the advancement of various technical (mainly) and end user requirements as independent sub-systems focusing more on the user interface and in the chart capability. Due to some initial delays in tool development (caused due to problems in hiring a PhD researcher from VITO), most of the requirements are not fulfilled considering the ONCOEVIDA system as a whole, requiring further validation and development. Delays will be compensated over the next period with a tail heavy plan in regards to development and a closer end user and technical partners collaboration. All final updated requirements will be addressed in the second iteration of the deliverable.

ONCO-EVIDA Innovation Aspects

Compared to existing tools that visualize cancer data (e.g. European Cancer Pulse, ECIR Data Tool), ONCO-EVIDA will offer additional functionality in at least three respects: (1) the user's ability to customize and save the output of their queries for easy side-by-side comparisons, (2) the generation of policy suggestions specific to the query and (3) CRC screening (coverage and/or participation) can be treated as both an independent and a dependent variable.

ONCO-EVIDA Functionalities and Design

This sub-section will focus on the basic dashboard functionalities mentioned during LIT₂ that focus on URs 1b-d, 4 and 11 and TRs 2-4, 6 and 13.

6.1.1 Functionalities

6.1.1.1 Datasets Access and Analysis



Users can access their custom and pre-curated datasets (based on available data sources accessible to them) within ONCO-EVIDA and organize relevant data for analysis. (UR1b, TR2)

6.1.1.2 Generating Charts

ONCO-EVIDA allows users to generate various charts directly from their datasets to visualize their data to gain insights and knowledge. (*UR*₄, *TR*₆)

6.1.1.3 **Building Dashboards**

Users can combine multiple charts representing at the same time a visualization of 'risk factors content' and of 'screening/health data content' into customized 'combined' graphical views. (UR4, TR6)

6.1.1.4 <u>Customizing Layout</u>

The tool will also provide options for users to customize the layout and design of their dashboards. (UR4, TR6)

6.1.1.5 <u>Saving Dashboards</u>

Users can save the dashboards they create (including the settings chosen) for future reference and export them for further analysis or sharing with colleagues and stakeholders (reproducibility and transparency). (UR4, TR6)

6.1.1.6 Evidence-Based Recommendations

Queries generate suggestions based on the analysis of the association between the independent and dependent variables of interest. (*UR1c-d*, *TR3-4*)

6.1.1.7 Access Control and User Authentication

Creating a password-secured user account is necessary to access ONCO-EVIDA's features. (UR11, TR13)

6.1.1.8 Additional Functionality

Some functionalities that are to be implemented in the future:

- Data integration from multiple sources
- Real-time data processing and display
- Data integration based on various metrics and dimensions
- Alerts and notifications based on predefined criteria
- Integration with machine learning algorithms

6.1.2 Design

This sub-section presents a curated selection of screenshots (Figure 33-Figure 39) that offer a comprehensive overview of ONCO-EVIDA's current design and functionalities.



	Welcome to Decretion Rearegister below. Enter desmonte Enter ennal Enter Password Register Company Vorderweidt Pressen kegter.		Welcome to Decedent to see your doubtoord Username Decedent to see your doubtoord Decedent to your doubtoord
(a)		(b)	

Figure 32 Registration (a) and Login (b) Page of ONCO-EVIDA.

Welcome	ONCOSCREEN
MAIN MAIN Main Dotasets	Welcome to ONCO-EVIDA Dashboard, your comprehensive tool for monitoring and interpreting critical data related to colorectal concer (CRC) and its societal impact. Developed as part of Task 4.6. this dashboard integrates high-level aggregated results from diagnostic tools, third-party statistics, and open databases, providing a holistic view of CRC motality and screening. The aim is to extend the turopean Concer integualities Registry from the national to regional level, allowing for a nuanced comparison of socio-economic factors such as urban x: rund, educated x: non- educated, minorities, unlencoble groups, and more. Powered by predictive analytics. DNCO-EVIDA hot only monitors current trends but diso acts as a proactive tool with an alerting mechanism, prompting evidence-based decisions ranging from composings to legislability policies. Privacy-preserved and anonymized information, including questionnative responses from the mabile app. is seemiesly transferred to the dashboard, where it is presented through intuitive visual graphs. Additionality, the dashboard aggregates economic cost information related to CRC, providing a
Create Crist Available Dashboards Recommendations USEFUL LINKS Oncosreen Website	Explore Datasets Create Chart or see available Dathboards
4R ✿ Settings E→ Logout	

Figure 33 ONCO-EVIDA's home page.

9	Avdilable Datasets	
elcome chris	This page contains a lab of all the contrabile datasets and the contrability data withins	which mergin is an appears. By selecting one specific shattent you will have the possibility to see the vary this dataset is argument (a colu
	Please choose one of the available datasets	Select Danset *
		DRD Incidentisper Country
matobe		steatyle roctors and cats incidente
lastro.		ENFORTMOND POLIDITION COUTING
eda Cherl		
AND CONTROL OF A		
ó.		
ediciew remains		
trays		
64 X		

Figure 34 ONCO-EVIDA's dataset page, where the user can see an overview of the available datasets.

ne 🚽	is page centaria e lat el id tho available cisto whi	of the available duranets which r Vit.	asign in our system. By solar	ing one specific :	dataset yeu will here	e the possibility to s	so the way this dataset is argonized ().
	ease choose one of th	e available datasets (Circ v	edants per Councy -				
	ISO code	CRC Incidents	Age Group	Renk	Gender	ы	Country
	ALS .	1338	49-49	4	Male	con	Altania
	AJI	14,89	40-49	3	Mole	003	ALS010
daga tés	88.	25.31	40-48	2	Molo	005	Bolgium
ions	84	25.02	40-48	2	Notes	085	formis and Herzegorina
	EDE:	12_53	40.40	а	Male	007	Dulgana
	891	18.89	40-40	3	Male	084	polarus
	HRV	19.95	40-49	2	Molo	008	Grootia
	CAP	20.01	40-48		Mole	044	Oypnis
	DNK	16.21	40-49	3	Nicle	CD	Decroark
	151	1144	40.49		Male	SII .	Datence

Figure 35 Information for each dataset is given in a table format.



Please choose or	ne of the following chart types:					
- [Line Chart	Bar Chart		Pie Chart	Column	
					1.1	
ds						
Please choose th	e information you would like to plot:					
	Select a Dataset	I •]	Select a Country	[•]	Select the Measures	
	Select x Axis		Select y Axis	V Enter o	hart name	
			Create Chart			

Figure 38 In this page the user can create a chart by selecting the desired chart type, the dataset, the countries of interest and the information they want on the x- and y-axes.



Figure 37 The chart page depicts the produced chart alongside a pivot table which contains the relevant information. The user has the possibility to save the chart on an existing dashboard or create a new dashboard and insert it there.

crc_incidents This dashboard contains 2 chart(s).	New CRC Dashboard This dashboard contains 1 chart(s).	
Open Delete	Open Delete	

Figure 36 In this page the user is given an overview of the dashboards that have been created. Each dashboard consists of several charts. The user can either open/edit the dashboard or delete it. Upon deletion the charts belonging to this dashboard are also deleted.



hris	bb	Lifest	yle Factors Chart	
	Dulgaria, 33.33%	il 300		
200		hnode		
3	Turkey, 33.33%	12 200 15		
thart		5 100		
o Dashboards	Ukraine, 33.33%	0		
endations	🔕 33.33% Bulgaria 🛛 🔵 33.33% Turkey 🕚 33.33% Ukraine	seigum c)prus	Country	naty
	In FusionCharts Trial	1. Fusion/Charts Triat		
	Show Pivot Table Remove Chart	Show Pivot Table	Remove Chort	
en Website				

Figure 39 The individual's dashboard page depicts all the charts belonging to this dashboard. The user has the possibility to delete a chart from the dashboard or access and edit its pivot table.

The ONCO-EVIDA system architecture has been described in detail in D4.1 (section 3.2.14.3).

6.1.3 ONCO-EVIDA Data Flows

ONCO-EVIDA is primarily an output tool. It will receive most of its data from the Data Fusion Tool but will also be able to analyse data that came directly from third-party sources. For more information regarding the data flow to and from ONCO-EVIDA, please consult the overall system architecture in D4.1.

ONCO-EVIDA Trustworthiness

Non-aggregated cancer data will only be accessible in a federated structure; it will not leave or be copied from the data owners' repositories. ONCO-EVIDA output cannot be downloaded without authentication.

Risks and Mitigation Measures

6.1.4 Risk 23 – Lack of partner engagement

Table 10 ONCO_EVIDA Risk 23.

Risk Title	Lack of partner engagement	Status	Open		
Risk Category	Stakeholder Engagement	Related Task	4.1		
Risk Description					
Lack of interaction between technical partners and end-users.					



Responsible Partner	ICCS (*)	Period Identified	Q1 2023	
Pro	obability	Impact		
	Low	Me	dium	
		<i>a</i> b <i>b b</i>		

Mitigation Plan (Indicative)

Composition of mixed working groups. Agile development methodology with frequent iterations and incremental releases. Regular planning of feedback moments. Bilateral outreach to (frequent) non-responders.

Comments

(*) Though ICCS is listed responsible partner in the Risk Registry, it falls to all ONCO-EVIDA partners to interact with end-users to gauge progress towards the URs.

6.1.5 Risk 46 – High-resolution data not supported

Table 11 ONCO_EVIDA Risk 46.

Risk Title	High-resolution data not supported	Status	Open				
Risk Category	Technical	Related Task 4.6					
Risk Description							
High-resolution ma below) lead to clut	aps are not supported by th tered visualization attempt	ne platform. Low geos is due to a large numb	patial levels (town or er of units.				
Responsible Partner	Catalink VITO	Period Identified Q1 2024					
Probability Impact							
High Medium							
	Mitigation Plan (Indicative)						
Increased emphasis on analysis results rather than visual representations for queries going below municipal level. Recommendation engine limits itself to mentioning only "worst performers".							



Comments	
N/A	


7 DATA FUSION Analysis and Architecture

The role of this tool is the multi-modal fusion of heterogeneous sources of data for mining and discovering new knowledge and correlations for CRC early detection, risk analysis and stratification of patients. The ONCOSCREEN's fused data lake is responsible for correlating ONCOSCREEN Data with 3rd party information while maintaining privacy by ensuring citizen anonymity.

Iterative Co-Design Activities with End Users

As stated in section 2.5 the data fusion task has no end user requirements. Therefore, at this stage of the project there are no co-design activities to be reported.

Addressing End-user and Technical Requirements

Data Fusion as a pure technical back-end tool that support the other tool doesn't have user requirements in its first iteration of the tool. Depending on the feedback rounds any end user requirements that may be presented shall be included in the second iteration of the deliverable. Nine Data Fusion technical requirements listed in detail in D4.1, although a particular number of them has been advanced, there are particular until their finalisation dealing with the overall 'system as a whole' response, having dependency with other tools' output. All requirements will be fulfilled in the second iteration of the deliverable.

DATA FUSION Analysis

At this stage of the project, only the analytic aspects of the data fusion component have been studied. By merging datasets from various open sources, the relation between environmental, lifestyle (nutrition, smoking, alcohol habits), comorbidities (obesity) and socioeconomic factors and CRC incidences were studied on country-level data from Europe. A correlation analysis and a linear regression analysis were performed using a time-lag and a moving average techniques, to study the effect of the exposure to the risk factors.

DATA FUSION Innovation Aspects

Metrics like partial correlations, following the principles of population methods and epidemiology, will be exploited to create a framework that will incorporate risk factors from open sources.

DATA FUSION Functionalities and Design Analysis

The data fusion comprises of two different tools; the data lake tool and the data fusion tool.

7.1.1 Analysis of Functionalities

ON ON SCREEN

7.1.1.1 Data lake

The data lake serves as a centralized physical repository dealing with clinical data from patients, video data from colonoscopies as well as image tissue data. All this types of data are gathered in a centralized repository and are shared to the respective ONCOSCREEN tools in order to be further analysed.

7.1.1.2 Data fusion

The role of the data fusion component is to reveal correlations between environmental, lifestyle (nutrition, smoking, alcohol habits), comorbidities (obesity) and socioeconomic risk factors and CRC incidences from open-source data on country level.

7.1.2 Design Analysis

Since the data fusion is at an early stage there are no specific design aspects to be reported in this deliverable.

7.1.3 DATA FUSION Data Flows

As described in detail in D4.1 subsection 3.2.11.4, the data lake component is connected to the ONCOAICO, ONCOAITI and ONCOBIOBA via REST APIs, while it is also connected via KAFKA SSL with the rest of the ONCOSCREEN tools. The data fusion tool is connected via KAFKA SSL with the rest of the ONCOSCREEN tools.

Data Fusion Tool Trustworthiness

The data lake will be designed based on SNOMED CT and the FHIR protocols and also will use SSL encryption, data anonymization and restricted access to data by certain tools to ensure secure exchange of the data.

Risks and Mitigation Measures

During all periods of the project, it is important to show that you have been aware of potential risks and that you have implemented mitigation measures to address them.

In this section, please align the risks with the ONCOSCREEN Risk Registry.

7.1.4 Risk 1 - Unsuitable cancer models

Table 3 DATA FUSION Risk 1.

Risk Title	Unsuitable cancer models	Status	Open
Risk Category	Technical	Related Task	4.2
	Risk Des	cription	



Difficulties in delivering suitable cancer-related data models						
Responsible Partner	oonsible CERTH Period Identified Q2 2023					
Pr	obability	Im	pact			
Ν	Medium Medium					
Mitigation Plan (Indicative)						
Conduct extensive literature study and extensive surveys with the ONCOSCREEN policy- makers. Emphasise further the interdisciplinary dimension and consider additional correlating factors to improve predictions. Collect more datasets and iterate based on synthetic data.						
Comments						
N/A						

Risk 2 – Issues with System Integration

Table 4DATA FUSION Risk 2.

Risk Title	Issues with System Integration	Status	Open
Risk Category	Technical	Related Task	4.2
	Risk Des	cription	
System level integ	ration or interoperability di	fficulties due to unfor	eseen complexity
Responsible Partner	CERTH	Period Identified	Q2 2023
Pr	obability	Im	pact
Medium		Н	ligh
	Mitigation Pla	n (Indicative)	



Clear description of system architecture, data models and interfaces following a standard modelling language. Modular software approach and well-defined interfaces between components from the very beginning. Structured and systematic approach to integration and verification activities, allowing sufficient time for tests. Close monitoring by the WP leaders and the Technical Coordinator to ensure smooth integration and interoperability.

Comments

N/A



8 Performance in Lab Tests/Clinical Trials

ONCO-RISTE in Laboratory Test 1 (LT1)

As of 1st LIT, no integration with other tools has been implemented, and the laboratory test focused solely on presenting the distinct functionalities of the ONCO-RISTE tool and the internal integration of the ONCO-RISTE back end with the fuzzy module.

In the ONCO-RISTE backend architecture, the functionality of fuzzy modules Python wheel library was utilized inside the backend to enhance the efficiency and capabilities of our system. This library was crafted and optimized for risk calculation prediction and provides a collection of



Principal Component 1

Figure 40 Result of Fuzzy C-means in LIT1 for 3-level risk. Principal Component technique was used to visualize these clusters.

pre-built functions that integrate with our backend processes.

Furthermore, for the need of the LITs in our project, we implemented an Integration Registry Excel as a centralized tracking system to monitor the connectivity between various tools. This registry serves as a dynamic record, detailing the relationships and interconnections between different components within our ecosystem. By documenting each tool's integration points, we ensure transparency and maintain a comprehensive overview of the entire system. The Integration Registry Excel not only aids in troubleshooting and debugging by swiftly identifying dependencies but also facilitates effective communication among team members. This proactive approach to monitoring tool connections enhances the project's overall efficiency and allows partners to respond promptly to any changes or issues in the integrated environment.

ONCO-RISTE introduced two key endpoints, namely "Soft Prediction" and "Fuzzy Prediction", offering distinct approaches for calculating risk scores based on user input. These endpoints

ON COSCREEN

serve as pivotal components of ONCO-RISTE's functionality, providing users with valuable insights through straightforward and fuzzy assessments.

The "Soft Prediction" endpoint is designed to offer a straightforward risk assessment based on user input. By utilizing established algorithms, this endpoint delivers a risk score that represents a clear and direct evaluation of the provided information. In contrast, the "Fuzzy Prediction" endpoint incorporates fuzzy logic as part of the algorithm to process user input. This approach allows for a more context-aware assessment, considering the uncertainties and impreciseness inherent in healthcare data. The output is a risk score that reflects a more comprehensive understanding of the user's health status.

User Input Processing

ONCOSCREEN		
Fuzzy Process		
Fuzzy Proce	SS	OPTIONS
GET /api/v1/fuzzy_prediction/		
<pre>HTTP 405 Method Not Allowed Allow: POST, OPTIONS Content-Type: application/json Vary: Accept { "detail": "Method \"GET\" }</pre>	not allowed."	
Media type:	application/json	~
Content:	<pre>{ "patient_id": "06d42c21-4c97-4171-ac00-3979a51a59d9", "tobacco_smoking_status": "Lifelong Non-smoker", "relationship_type": "Unknown", "tissue_or_organ_of_origin": "Not Reported", "primary_dlagnosis": "Tubular Adenoma", "metastasis_at_diagnosis": "Unknown", "classification_of_tumor": "Premalignant", "site_of_resection_or_biopsy": "Liver", "gender": "Male" }</pre>	•
		POST

Figure 41 User input interface.

The user provides input through a designated interface, supplying relevant information for risk assessment. ONCO-RISTE processes this input according to the specific logic implemented in each endpoint. Included in this deliverable are detailed print screens capturing the user interface for input submission, the response interface displaying the risk scores, and console logs illustrating the internal processes and calculations performed by ONCO-RISTE during the prediction requests.



<pre>TP 200 0K Low: MCT, OPTIONS Interl.Type: splitclin/jion Typ: Accept "refate_message": { "primery_clagostaru": fournet Secker", "trist_on_grupper_origin: "met secker", "frist_on_grupper_origin: "met secker", "frist_on_grupper_i frist_on_grupper_origin: "met secker", "frist_on_grupper_i frist_on_grupper_origin: "met secker", "frist_on_grupper_i frist_on_grupper_on_grupp</pre>	DST /api/v1/soft_prediction/	
<pre>law for, oprovs het-Top: splitsion/json ry: Accept "wafka_message": { "mattert_Lit": "0642cl1.4c37.4121.ac00-1370e51a5095", "rist_out; { "tobacc_meking_statu": Turnent secker", "rist_outCignost: "Inst Degree selive", "tiss.deorgan.of_orgin": Turk Reporter", "prist_org.jdagosts: "Inst Degree selive", "tiss.deorgan.of_orgin": Turker", "restatisi.st.diagosts: "Inst Degree selive", "tiss.deorgan.of_orgin": Turker", "gender": "feasle" // "fist_level_1": 0.32252683276009, "fist_level_1": 0.411127660071572, "fist_level_1": 0.22236832760093, "fist_level_1": 0.2223683276093, "fist_level_1": 0.222</pre>	TP 299 0K	
<pre>mtert-type: spliction/json yp: Accept "Vefka_message": { Totatert_id*: "ecodecil.4c97-4171-acd0-3970esia5909", Triste_input:: { Totatert_id*: "ecodecil.ac97-4171-acd0-3970esia5909", Triste_input:: { Totatert_id*: "ecodecil.ac97-4171-acd0-3970esia5909", Triste_input:: { Totatert_id*: "ecodecil.ac97-4171-acd0-3970esia5909", Triste_input:: { Totatert_id*: "ecodecil.ac97-4171-acd0-3970esia5909", Triste_input:: { Totatert_id*: "ecodecil.ac97-4171-acd0-3970esia590", Triste_input:: { Totatert_id*: "ecodecil.ac97-4171-acd0-3970esia5909", Triste_input:: { Triste_input:: { Triste_input:: { Triste_input:: {</pre>	In LOGIN, OPTIONS	
<pre>ry: Accept "wafta_message": { Partient_id: '6943021.4-67.4171.ac00.3979s5185369", Tiste_point: { Tobacco_seking_statust: Current Seker", relationshi_type: 'First Degree Relative", relationshi_type: 'Excitonor', retextasis_diagnois: 'Net Reported', retext_level_i' 0.322020802706093, risk_level_i' 0.322020802706093, risk_level_i' 0.322020802709093, risk_level_i'' 0.3260208020709093, risk_level_i'' 0.3260208020709093, risk_tevel_i'' 0.26602095060270356 } } // retextasis at Diagnois''' 'Turrent Seker', riske or Organ of Origin: 'Net Reported', rrisk_tevel_i''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''</pre>	nitent-Type: application/ison	
<pre>"kefka_message": { "patient_id": "06942c21.4c97.4111.ac00-3979851a59d9", "riste_input": { Tobacco_sekking_status": "Current Seeker", "relationship_type": "First Degree Relative", "relationship_type": "First Degree Relative", "relationship_type": "Carcinoma", "relationship_type": "Carcinoma", "classification_of_tumor": "Primary", "site_of_resection_on_blogy": 'Liver", "gender": "Female" /, "rist_level_1": 0.322232632700003, "rist_level_2": 0.322232632700033, "rist_level_2": 0.322232632700033, "rist_level_2": 0.322232632700033, "rist_level_1": 0.322322632700033, "rist_level_1": 0.322322632700033, "rist_level_1": 0.322322632700033, "rist_level_1": 0.322322632700033, "rist_level_1": 0.322322632700033, "rist_level_1": 0.322322632700033, "rist_level_1": 0.3223222700033, "rist_level_1": 0.32232222700033, "rist_level_1": 0.32232222700033, "</pre>	ry: Accept	
<pre>"kefka_message": { "prist_int_idf: "Bed/221-4:57-4371-ac00-35798518590", "rist_contront"; "tobacco_smoking_status": "Current smoker", "rist_intoning_type: "First Oegree Relative", "rist_use_or_orga_of_origin": "Not Reported", "prist_contront": "Relative", "tassification_of_twoment": Premary", "site_of_resection_on_biopsy: "Liver", "risk_level": { "risk_level": {</pre>		
<pre>ktra_missge :/ "patient_id: '@edd221-457-4171-ac00-39798518580", "riste_input": (</pre>	Harden managements (
<pre>print(invit:) { "ristinvit:) { "ristinvit: "furner(Socker", "ristinvit: "furner(Socker", "rist_use_or_organ_of_origin: "het Reporter", "rist_ort_invit: "factions", "rist_ort_invit: "hetastasis", "rist_level": { "rist_level": { "rist_level: 0: 0.322632563276003), "rist_level_i": 0.411127666671972, "rist_ort_invit: 0.2662396560267356) } }, ressage_clide": { "rist_ort_invit: 0.2662396560267356) }, restasis of Dignosis": "furner Socker", "rist_invit: ["rist_ort_invit: { "rist_ort_i</pre>	Kolka_mcsogc . : "nationt id". "acd/0/21.4/07.4171.sr00.2070sC1sCdd"	
<pre>"Tobacco_moking_status": "Gurrent Seeker", "relationship_type": "First Degree Relative", "tisse_or_organ_of_origin": "Net Reporter", "relassification_of_tumer": "relasers", "elassification_of_tumer": "relasers", "elassification_of_tumer": "relasers", "fist_output": { "rist_level_e": 0.32632032700099, "rist_level_e": 0.32632032700099, "rist_level_e": 0.4111276606971972, "rist_level_e": 0.4111276606971972, "rist_uent": "Surgers Relative", "rist_uent": "Surgers": "Live", "rist_uent": "Surgers": "Live", "Relation of Tumer": "Primary", "Sist_uent": { "rist_uent": { "rist_uent": {</pre>	"riste inut": {	
<pre>"relationship_type": "#irst begree Relative", "tisse_or_organ_of_orgin" "Web Reported", "primery_Slagnosist: "Carcinome", "retestasis_st_diagnosist: "Metastasis", "rist_of_presection_or_blopsy: "live", "gender": "Remale" , "rist_output": { "rist_output": { "rist_level_d": 0.326336832760093, "rist_level_d": 0.326336832760093, "rist_level_d": 0.4111276606971972, "rist_level_d": 0.6262905602679356)) rotist_on the start of the</pre>	"tobacco smoking status": "Current Smoker".	
<pre>"tissue_ororgan_of_orsin": "Wet Reported", "orismry.diagoosis": "Artinaar", "etestsis_st_diagnosis": "Nterstasis", "lissification_of_tumor": "rimary", "rist_orreset.onblogsy: "live", "rist_level_": { "rist_level_": 0.322532632760093, "rist_level_": 0.411276666971972, "rist_level_": 0.411276666971972, "rist_level_": 0.2662396562679366 } } // */rist_ort": "Current Smoker", "rist_ort": "Curren</pre>	"relationship type": "First Degree Relative",	
<pre>"primery_diagnosis": "Carrinoma", "metastais_mt_diagnosis": "Primery", "site_output": { "risk_level_0": 6.326532683760093, "risk_level_0": 6.326532683760093, "risk_level_1": 6.411176606971972, "risk_level_1": 6.411176606971972, "risk_level_1": 6.32653265626578356 } } }, /* frafin_message_clide": { "potient_1d": "Bodd2021.4C97-4171.ac80-3979351a59d9", "risk_level_1": 6.36632021.4C97-4171.ac80-3979351a59d9", "risk_level_1": Current Smoker", "risk_uero Organ Origint": "Not Reported", "risk_uero Organ Origint": "Not Reported", "risk_uero Organois?": "Gractionem", "risk_uero Organois?": "Metastasis", "risk_uero Organois?": "Metastasis", "risk_uero Organois?": "Metastasis", "risk_uero!": { "risk_uero!": { risk_u</pre>	"tissue_or_organ_of_origin": "Not Reported",	
<pre>"metstasis_t_diagnosis" "Metstasis", "classification_of_biopsy": "Liver", "gender": "memle" }, "rist_output": { "rist_level_": 0.322632682760093, "risk_level_": 0.41127666671972, "risk_level_": 0.41127666671972, "risk_level_": 0.262396502679356 } } } }, "rist_not": "Godd2c21.4c97.4171.ac00-3979851853d9", "rist_not": "Godd2c21.4c97.4171.ac00-3979851854d9", "rist_not": "Godd2c21.4c97.4171.ac00-3979851854d9", "rist_not": "Godd2c21.4c97.4171.ac00-3979851854d9", "rist_not": "Godd2c21.4c97.4171.ac00-3979851824d9", "rist_not": "Godd2c21.4c97.4171.ac00-3979851824 "rist_not": "Godd2c21.4c97.4171.ac00-3979851824 "rist_not": "Godd2c21.4c97.4171.ac00-3979851824 "rist_not": "Godd2c21.4c97.4171.ac00-3979851824 "rist_not": "Godd2c21.4c97.4171.ac00-3979851824 "rist_not": "Godd2c21.4c97.411276606971972, "rist_not": "Godd2c21.4c97.411276606971972, "rist_not": "Godd2c21.4c97.411276606971972, "rist_not": "Godd2c21.4c97.41127660671972, "rist_not": "Godd2c21.4c97.41127660671972, "rist_not": "Godd2c21.4c97.41127660671972, "rist_not": "Godd2c21.4c97.41127660671972, "rist_not": "Godd2c21.4c97.41127660671972, "rist_no</pre>	"primary_diagnosis": "Carcinoma",	
<pre>"classification_of_tumer": "Primary", "gender": "Female" }, "risk_coutput": {</pre>	"metastasis_at_diagnosis": "Metastasis",	
<pre>"site_of_resection_or_biopsy": "Liver", "gender": "female" "rist_level_": 0.322632682760093, "risk_level_": 0.322632682760093, "risk_level_": 0.322632682760093, "risk_level_": 0.5623965602679356 }) /*tafka_message_clide": { "patient_id": "06042c21-4c97-4171-ac00-3979a51a59d9", "rist_input": { "rist_input": { "robacco Sacking Status": "Current Smoker", "rist_input": { "robacco Sacking Status": "Current Smoker", "rist_insup Type: "First Oegree Relative", "rist_insup Type: "First Oegree Relative", "rist_insup Type: "First Oegree Relative", "rist_sification of Tome": "Primary", "relastification of Tome": "Primary", "relastification of Tome": "Primary", "Site of Resection or Biopsy": "Liver", "relater": { "rist_output": { "rist_output": { "rist_output": { "Risk Level? : 0.22632682700093, "Risk Level? : 0.22622682700093, "Risk Level? : 0.22622682700003, "Risk Level? : 0.</pre>	"classification_of_tumor": "Primary",	
<pre>"gender": "female" }, "rist_output": { "rist_level_": 0.322532632760093, "rist_level_2": 0.411276606971972, "rist_level_2": 0.265296562679356 } } /*Gfma_message_clide": { "patient_id": "6642c21.4c97.4171.ac00-3979051a53d9", "rist_idevel_2": 0.265296562679356 } } /*Cobacco Sacking Status": "Current Smoker", "relationship Type: "First Opene Relative", "rist_idevel_2": 0.265296562760093, "rist_idevel_2": "Current Smoker", "relationship Type: "First Opene Relative", "rist_idevel_2": "Current Smoker", "relationship Type: "First Opene Relative", "rist_idevel_2": "Current Smoker", "relationship Type: "First Opene Relative", "rister on organ of Origin?: "Wet Reported", "relationship Type: "First Opene Relative", "rister on organ of origin?: "Wet Reported", "rister on or is Dippos?: "Liver", "relassification of Tupor": "First_Optime", "relationship Type: "Horizon Optime", "rister on is Dippos?: "Liver", "rister on is Coppos?: "Liver", "rister on is toppos?: "Liver", "rister on is Optime", "rister on is 0.22622682760009, "mister on is 0.22622682760099, "mister on is 0.411276802760099, "mister on is 0.41127</pre>	"site_of_resection_or_biopsy": "Liver",	
<pre>}; "rist_output": { "rist_level_0": 0.3226326832760093, "rist_level_1": 0.4111276606971972, "rist_level_1": 0.2662995602679356) } }; // "kafia_message_clide": { "patient_id": "06042c21-4c57-4171-8c00-3979a51859d9", "rist_input": { "patient_id": "06042c21-4c57-4171-8c00-3979a51859d9", "rist_input": { "patient_id": "06042c21-4c57-4171-8c00-3979a51859d9", "rist_input": { "patient_id": "06042c21-4c57-4171-8c00-3979a51859d9", "rist_input": { "patient_id": "0current Smoker", "rist_input": { "rist_input": Current Smoker", "rist_input": Current Smoker", "rist_input": Current Smoker", "rist_input": Current Smoker", "rist_input": Current Smoker", "rist_input": "Current Smoker", "rist_input": "Cure</pre>	"gender": "Female"	
<pre>"rist_eoutput": { "rist_level_": 0.322632682760093, "rist_level_": 0.411276606971972, "rist_level_": 0.42262396502679356 } } } /* Trate_message_clide": { "potient_id": "Bode2c21.4c97.4171.ac00-3979851a53d9", "rist_pott": { "rist_pott": { "rist_pott": "furt Degree Relative", "rist_pott": "furt Degree Relative", "rist_pott": "furt Degree Relative", "rist_pott": "furt Degree Relative", "rist_organ of Origin": "Not Reported", "retarsais at Diagnosis?": "arcinoms", "riste of Resection or Biopsy: "liver", "riste of Resection or Biopsy: "liver", "riste_output": { "rist_coutput": { "rist_eoutput": { "</pre>	h	
<pre>Trist_level_1": { "fist_level_1": 0.32632632760093, "fist_level_1": 0.41127660571972, "fist_level_1": 0.41127660571972, "fist_level_1": 0.42622632760093, " "fortat_ids": "GoddAcC21.4C97.4171.ac00-3979551a55d9", "rist_idsevent_1": { "robacco Smoking Status": "Current Smoker", "rist_idsevent_1": "First Degree Relative", "rist_use or organ of Origin": "Mot Reported", "rist_use or organ of Origin": "Mot Reported", "rist_use or organ of Origin": "Not Reported", "ristue or organ of Origin": "Not Reported", "rist_use or organ of Origin": "Not Reported", "rist_origonois?": "Gratinoms", "classification of Tumor": "Primary", "site of Reserion on Slopsy: "Liver", "classification of Slopsy: "Liver", "rist_useler: { "rist_useler: { "rist_useler: { "Riseler: { "Rist_useler: {</pre>	"riste_output": {	
<pre>'isk_level_' = 0:32632060000000000000000000000000000000</pre>	"risk_level": {	
<pre>''isk_level_1'' 0.456239566257336 '} } / / // /*afka_message_clide": { "patient_id": "0642c21.4c97.4171.ac00-3979851a53d9", "rist_pupt": "First Ogene Relative", "relationship Type": "First Ogene Relative", "rissue on organ of origin": "Wok Reported", "rissue on organ of origin?: "Wok Reported", "retestasis at Diagnosis?: "Metatosis", "retestasis at Diagnosis?: "Metatosis", "retestasis at Diagnosis?: "Metatosis", "rist_output": { "rist_output": { "rist_evel1": 0.22632682760093, "Risk Level2": 0.26623965602679356 } }</pre>	"Fisk_Level_0 : 0.522532632/00053,	
<pre>} } / // // // // // // // // // // //</pre>	"risk_level_1 * 0.**********************************	
<pre>}</pre>		
<pre>), "kafia_message_clide": { "patient_id": "dodd2c21-4c97-4171-ac00-3979a51a59d9", "riste_input": { "roiste_input": "First Degree Relative", "relationship Type": "First Degree Relative", "riste_orignosis "concinoms", "reitary Diagnosis?: "Metatostis", "relations of trueor": "Primary", "site of Resection of Biopsy:: "Liver", "endee": "Female" }, "riste_output": { "riste_verle": 0.722502832760093, "Risk Level1": 0.4111276666971972, "Risk Level1": 0.2623965602679356 } } </pre>	}	
<pre>"kefma_message_clide": { "patient_id": "6de42cli+497-4171-ac0e-3979a51a59d9", "riste_input": { "robacco Smoking Status": "Current Smoker", "relationship Type: "#irst Degree Relative", "risue on Organ of Origin": "Not Reported", "relationship Type: "Carcinoma", "relationship Type: "Carcinoma", "relationship Type: "Carcinoma", "relationship Type: "Metastasis", "classification of Tumor": "Primary", "site of Resection or Biopsy: "Liver", "enter": "Female" }, "riste_output": { "riste_output": { "riste_level": 0.22632682760093, "Risk Level2": 0.26623956082679356 } } </pre>		
<pre>"patient_id": "0644221.469-4171_ac08-3979851859d9", "rist_input": { "robacco Smoking Status": "Current Smoker", "@elationship type: "First Operate Relative", "risue on Organ of Origin": "Not Reported", "risue on Organ of Origin": "Not Reported", "ristasis at Diagnosis?: "Netastisis", "classification of Tuoor": "Primary", "site of Resection of Elopsy": "Liver", "ender": "female" }, "rist_output": { "rist_output": { "rist_level1": { "site viel1": 0.22612682760093, "Rist Level1": 0.22612682760093, "Rist Level2": 0.26623965602679356 } }</pre>	"kafka_message_clide": {	
<pre>"rist_input": { Tobacco Snoking Status": "Current Snoker", "elationship Type": "First Degree Relative", "rissue on Organ of Origin": "Not Reported", "rimary Diagnosis": "Carcinoma", "whetastasis at Diagnosis": "Carcinoma", "leastification of Tunor": "Frinary", "list of Resection or Elopsy": "Liver", "Gender": "Fenale"), "rist_output": { "rist_level1": { "Risk Level2": 0.22632682760093, "Risk Level2": 0.26623965602679356 } } } }</pre>	"patient_id": "06d42c21-4c97-4171-ac00-3979a51a59d9",	
<pre>"Tobacco moking Status:: "Current smoker", "Relationship Type: "First Opene Relative", "Tissue on Organ of Origin". "Not Reported", "Primary Diagnosis: "Carcinoma", "Netastasis at Diagnosis?': "Netastasis", "Classification of Tumor": "Primary", "Site of Resection or Biopsy": "Liver", "Cender": "Female"), "Tiste_output": { "Tiste_uotput": { "Tiste_uotput": { "Tiste_worle": 0.322632682760093, "Tiste Level2": 0.2662395680279356 } }</pre>	"riste_input": {	
<pre>"#elstionship Type": "First Degree Relative", "Tissue or Organ of Origin": "Nor Reported", "Primary Diagnosis": "Carcinoma", "Metastasis at Diagnosis?: "Metamary", "Site of Resection or Biopsy": "Liver", "Gender": "Female"), "riste_output": { "riste_verle": 0.3263256082750003, "Risk Level1": 0.41112766060571972, "Risk Level1": 0.2663295602673366 } </pre>	"Tobacco Smoking Status": "Current Smoker",	
<pre>"Tissue on Origin': "Not Reported", "Primary Diagnosis": "Martinama", "Retastrasis at Diagnosis": "Matstasis", "Classification of Tumon": "Primary", "Site of Resection or Biopsy: "Liver", "Gender": "Female"), "Tiste_output": { "fist_level1": { "Risk_Level2": 0.226326832760093, "Risk_Level2": 0.26623965602679356 } }</pre>	"Relationship Type": "First Degree Relative",	
<pre>/*/IMEry Ulagnosis : Carlonda ,</pre>	"Tissue or Organ of Origin": "Not Reported",	
<pre>Petes(asis at LiagNois); metes(asis, ,</pre>	Primary Diagnosis -: - Carcinoma ,	
<pre>'Site of Resection or Biopsy': "Liver", "Gender": "Female"), "riste_output": { "fiste_kevel0": 0.22632682760093, "Misk Level1": 0.4111276606971972, "Risk Level2": 0.26623965602679356 } }</pre>	"Plassification of Tumor" "Primary"	
<pre>""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""</pre>	"Site of Reservice on Bionsy", "Liver"	
<pre>}, "rist_output": { "rist_level": { "Rist_level": 0.326326832760093, "Rist_tevel": 0.4111276e06971972, "Rist_Level2": 0.26623965602679356 } }</pre>	"Gender": "Female"	
<pre>"riste_output": { "iste_level": { "fiste_level": { "fiste_level1": { "fiste_level2": 0.3226126832760093, "fiste_level2": 0.41127666871872, "fiste_level2": 0.26623965602679356 }</pre>	h	
<pre>"risk_level": { "Risk_Level0": 0.32263256822760093, "Risk_Level0": 0.4111276e0e571972, "Risk_Level2": 0.26623965602679356 } }</pre>	"riste_output": {	
"Risk Level": 0.326325683760093, "Risk Level": 0.411275660791972, "Risk Level2": 0.26623965602679356 }	"risk_level": {	
"Risk Level1": 0.411276606371972, "Risk Level2": 0.26623965602679356 }	"Risk Level0": 0.3226326832760093,	
"Risk Level2": 0.26623965602679356	"Risk Level1": 0.4111276606971972,	
	"Risk Level2": 0.26623965602679356	
3		
	3	

Figure 42: ONCO-RISTE 1st LIT output screen.



Figure 43: ONCO-RISTE console output during 1st LIT

ONCO-CAWA in Laboratory Test 1 (LT1)

The early version of ONCO-CAWA was presented in LT1, focusing on the subject registration process and the ONCOSCREEN branding. The registration included the different consents, notices, and disclaimers. Some widgets were also covered. Analytical screenshots were presented in previous. For the avoidance of duplication please see the reference to ONCO-CAWA tool previously in this document.

ONCO-CLIDE in Laboratory Test 1 (LT1)

During our inaugural lab integration test, we highlighted two principal advancements in our project's development. The initial segment of our presentation was dedicated to the unveiling of the system's high-level architecture, with a particular focus on the logical flow of information between components. This overview was critical in illustrating the theoretical underpinnings of our system's design, showcasing how data is expected to traverse through the various layers and





Figure 44 Logical flow chart of ONCO-CLIDE.

modules. By outlining the logical flow, we aimed to provide participants with a clear yet simple picture of the system's operational blueprint. This foundational architecture is crucial not only for understanding the interactions within the system but also for guiding the subsequent development phases, ensuring that the project progresses on a well-defined and coherent path.

The second part of our presentation shifted towards a more tangible aspect of our project, with a live demonstration of the initial design and implementation of the web interface. This handson showcase allowed us to bring the theoretical aspects of our project to life, presenting how users will interact with the system through a carefully crafted interface. The demonstration highlighted the practical application of our high-level architectural principles in the design and functionality of the web interface, emphasizing user experience and interaction. By bridging the gap between the system's logical flow and its user interface, this live demo not only underscored our commitment to a user-centric design approach but also provided an invaluable opportunity for gathering direct feedback, setting the stage for ongoing refinement and improvement.

Images from the web interface can be seen in section 5.1.4.

ONCO-EVIDA in Laboratory Test 1 (LT1)

For the first LIT meeting, the technical partners working on ONCO-EVIDA introduced the tool and its main functionalities, placing emphasis on the visualization of data, the customizability of resulting dashboards, and the future ability of ONCO-EVIDA to provide recommendations based on the end-user's specific query. A short live demo of the front-end was given, after which we reached out to end-users for feedback.



DATA FUSION in Laboratory Test 1 (LT1)

The role of data fusion is to reveal interrelations between different risk factors and colorectal cancer (CRC) metrics. These metrics can include CRC rate per population, deaths due to CRC or Disability-adjusted life years (DALYs) which is a metric reflecting the complete picture of the burden of the disease measuring the years of life lost due to ill-health, disability or early death.



Figure 45 Interrelations between risk factors and CRC incidences.

The study of risk factors affecting CRC metrics leads to multidimensional data, including socioeconomic, environmental, lifestyle and behavioural features, which are strongly related to each other. For example, information about the region where a patient lives is highly related to environmental features, such as pollution metrics. These relations can be revealed by designing a complex architecture network, as can be seen in the Figure Fusion_1. In the figure, the direct and indirect correlations between the different risk factors, as well as the CRC incidences, can be seen.

ONCO-RISTE in Laboratory Test 2 (LT2)

The central focus of our efforts during the 2nd Lab Test resided in ensuring the successful integration of the various tools within the designated environment recognizing the critical importance of a harmonious integration for the overall success of the project.

For the 2nd LIT ONCO-RISTE fetched user input from ONCO-CAWA user questionnaires that were answered real time.

Integration with ONCO-CAWA ensures the utilization of accurate and up-to-date questionnaire answers, improving the overall quality of data processed by ONCO-RISTE. The integration established a seamless communication channel between ONCO-RISTE and ONCO-CAWA, allowing for the efficient exchange of essential health-related information. ONCO-RISTE in order to fetch questionnaire answers used ONCO-CAWA Rest APIs.



Subsequent to the successful integration efforts, our focus shifted towards the computation of risk scores. This involved the selection of the most important factors according to previous results and end-user's information, the formatting of the data that is received by the algorithm to be compliance with the aforementioned factors, and improvements in the automatic calculation of the number of clusters.

Following the comprehensive calculation process, the obtained risk scores were systematically transmitted through the Kafka messaging system. This strategic choice of utilizing Kafka ensured a reliable and scalable means of disseminating the calculated risk scores to the intended recipients, further solidifying the robustness and efficiency of the integrated system. In the 2nd LIT the calculated risk score was send to ONCO-CAWA, ONCO-CLIDE, DATA FUSION tools resulting to a complete integration test.

oncoscreen-oncoriste-backend-backend-1	2024-01-15	14:44:16,877	[INFO]	django.server	: "POST /ap:	i/v1/soft_	prediction/
HTTP/1.1" 200 7935							
oncoscreen-oncoriste-backend-backend-1	2024-01-15	15:03:47,454	[INFO]	app.settings:	Fetching in	nput from	ONCO-CAWA
oncoscreen-oncoriste-backend-backend-1	2024-01-15	15:03:47,454	[INFO]	app.settings:	ONCO-CAWA:	Token not	existing as
a global, logging in again							
oncoscreen-oncoriste-backend-backend-1	2024-01-15	15:03:47,934	[INFO]	app.settings:	ONCO-CAWA:	Response	from CAWA lo
gin:{'accessToken': 'eyJhbGciOiJIUzI1NiIsI	InR5cCI6IkpX	VCJ9.eyJzdWIi(DiI2YTNi	MTh10C0zNTNhL	FQOM2EtYmE3/	1C00MmIzZD	ZlNjA0NWYiLC
JqdGkiOiIyMmVlNzc1MC03YmU5LTQxMDEtYWM1YS1k	ZTkxNDdiMzI	1ZGYiLCJuYmYi(DjE3MDUz	MzEwMjYsImV4c	CI6MTczNjg2	NzAyNiwiaX	NzIjoiaHR0cH
M6Ly9oZWFsdGhlbnRpYS5jb20iLCJhdWQiOiJodHRw	czovL2hlYWx	0aGVudGlhLmNvb	bSJ9.bi7	EYRheqq80to41	[ODdZfRmSqX]	lbzCTVH02X	OVcOoQ', 're
freshToken': '6+Y1wLI8E+smmkJoolRRK63ktDu+	-8uqOyZGnYUi	8CJk=', 'expir	res': 36	5}			
oncoscreen-oncoriste-backend-backend-1	2024-01-15	15:03:47,936	[INFO]	app.settings:	ONCO-CAWA:	Making a	request to:h
ttps://demo-api.healthentia.com/v3/data-pr	ovider/answ	ers?studyId=7	&lastPr	ocessedId=676	901 with hea	ader { ⁻ Aut	horization':
'Bearer eyJhbGciOiJIUzI1NiIsInR5cCI6IkpX\	/CJ9.eyJzdWI	iOiI2YTNiMThl	DCØZNTNh	LTQ0M2EtYmE3M	COOMmIzZDZ1	JAONWYILC	JqdGkiOiIyMm
V1Nzc1MC03YmU5LTQxMDEtYWM1YS1kZTkxNDdiMzI1	ZGYiLCJuYmY	iOjE3MDUzMzEwN	4jYsImV4	cCI6MTczNjg2N	zAyNiwiaXNz	[joiaHR0cH	M6Ly9oZWFsdG
hlbnRpYS5jb20iLCJhdWQiOiJodHRwczovL2hlYWx0	aGVudGlhLmN	vbSJ9.bi7EYRh	eqq80to4	1IODdZfRmSqX1	ZCTVH02X0V	:0oQ'}	
oncoscreen-oncoriste-backend-backend-1	2024-01-15	15:03:48,371	[INFO]	app.settings:	ONCO-CAWA:	Response	mapped for f
uzzy: {'tobacco_smoking_status': 'Lifelong	Non-smoker	', 'relations	hip_type	': 'Unknown',	'tissue_or	_organ_of_	origin': 'No
t Reported', 'primary_diagnosis': 'Tubular	Adenoma',	'metastasis_at	c_diagno	sis': 'Unknown	n', 'classi	fication_o	f_tumor': 'P
remalignant', 'site_of_resection_or_biopsy	<pre>': 'Liver',</pre>	'gender': 'Ma	ale'}				

Figure 47: ONCO-RISTE automatically fetching user input data from ONCO-CAWA after authenticating itself.

GET	 ∽ https://d 	emo-api.healthen	tia.com/v3/data	-provider/answers?studyId=73&lastF	Processedid=675956 Send v
Params •	Authorization •	Headers (7)	Body Pre-n	equest Script Tests Settings	Cookies
Туре		Bearer Token	~	(i) Heads up! These parameter	ers hold sensitive data. To keep this data secure while working in a collaborative environment, we recommend using variables. Learn more about
The authoriza	orization header will b the request. Learn me ntion	e automatically ge pre about <mark>Bearer 1</mark>	nerated when <u>'oken</u>	Token	eyJhbGci0iJIU211NiisInR5cCl6ikpXVCJ9.ey
Body Co	ookies Headers (8)	Test Results			🔁 Status: 200 OK Time: 849 ms Size: 101.82 KB 🖺 Save as example 🚥
Pretty	Raw Preview	v Visualize	JSON V	9	re Q
1 ((
2	"studyId": 73,				
3	"answers": [
5	1 15471 6	76848			
6	"natien	tOuestionnaireId	*: 219159.		
7	"subjec	Id": "2YCF9".			
8	"date":	"29-11-23"			
9	"sentDa	te": "29-11-23"			
10	"questi	onnaireId": 873,			
11	"questi	onnaireTitle": '	'ONCO-RISTE",		
12	"questi	onnaireCodename'	: "ONCO_RISTE"	",	
13	"questi	onId": 10275,			
14	"questi	onTitle": "W	nat is your ger	nder?< <u>/p</u> >",	
15	"questi	onCodename": "R	STE_GENDER",		
16	"answer	": "Male",			
17	"score"	. null,			
18	"parent	Juestion": null			

Figure 46: Test to fetch ONCO-CAWA user input data.





Figure 48: ONCO-CAWA receiving ONCO-RISTE output.

tics Colonoscopy Imaging Lab Tests Reports	
tics Colonoscopy Imaging Lab Tests Reports	
tics Colonoscopy Imaging Lab Tests Reports	
tics	Suggestions
NCO-VOC ONCO-NMR	-
Negative Positive	 Lorêm ipsum dolor sit amet, consectetur adipiscing elit. Ut enim ad minim veniam, quis nostrud exercitation ullamco laboris nisi ut aliquip ex ea commodo consequat.
CO-CRISPR ONCO-CTC	 Lorem ipsum dolor sit amet, consectetur adipiscing elit. Ut enim ad minim veniam, quis nostrud exercitation ullamco laboris nisi ut aliquip ex ea commodo consequat.
Positive Negative	 Lorem ipsum dolor sit amet, consectetur adipiscing elit. Ut enim ad minim veniam, quis nostrud exercitation ullamco laboris nisi ut aliquip ex ea commodo consequat.
	 Lorem ipsum dolor sit amet, consectatur adipiscing elit. Ut enim ad minim veniam, quis nostrud exercitation ullamco laboris nisi ut aliquip ex ea commodo consequat;
	Lorem ipsum dolor sit amet, consectetur adipiscing elit. Ut enim ad minim veniam, quis nostrud exercitation
A2.08% b Tabases Smoking Statur: Lideon Non-smoker	
18.68% Relationship Type: First Degree Relative	
19.23% Tissue or Organ of Origin: Not Reported	

Figure 49: ONCO-CLIDE receiving ONCO-RISTE output.



ONCO-CAWA in Laboratory Test 2 (LT2)

In LIT₂ ONCO-CAWA was demonstrated to end-user partners, placing the focus on data collection. Especially questionnaires were used, demonstrating the different UI capabilities in answering them.

The API of ONCO-CAWA was used to ingest the answers to the questionnaires, and feed ONCO-RISTE with the necessary attributes to perform risk assessment. The assessment was captured by a first version of the Kafka ingestion service of ONCO-CAWA. The demonstration is already described in section 8.6.

ONCO-CLIDE in Laboratory Test 2 (LT2)

The second lab integration test (LIT) marked a significant milestone in our project development, characterized by several key advancements. Primarily, our team successfully integrated user roles and user management features into the web platform. This enhancement is crucial as it enables distinct access levels and functionalities for different types of users, ensuring a tailored and secure user experience.

In addition to this, we showcased a preliminary example of integration between the web interface and two specialized tools: ONCO-RISTE and ONCO-VOC. This integration was facilitated through the Kafka setup implemented by EXUS, demonstrating the potential for seamless communication and data exchange between our web platform and these critical diagnostic tools. This integration is particularly noteworthy as it represents a significant step towards complete integration.

Furthermore, we have also undertaken various design changes in both the web interface and the backend. These modifications are not just aesthetic but are aimed at enhancing user interaction and the overall functionality of the system. By improving the user interface, we aim to make the platform more intuitive and user-friendly, while backend changes are focused on increasing the system's reliability, speed, and efficiency.

Overall, the second lab integration test was an opportunity to demonstrate the substantial progress we have made in developing a more integrated, user-centric, and efficient web platform.

ONCO-EVIDA in Laboratory Test 2 (LT2)

ONCO-EVIDA's showcase during LIT 2 built upon the presentation for the previous LIT meeting in order to better convey the progress made since. The presentation consisted of a quick recap of ONCO-EVIDA's nature as a user-friendly tool for policymakers and four parts of new content, one for each technical partner:

- 1) Introduction to and evolution of the back-end API (CERTH)
- 2) Live demo of the front-end interface (Catalink)

ON ON SCREEN

- 3) Wireframe of the recommendation engine (VITO)
- 4) Processing of air quality data (ICCS)

End-users (and other partners) were then once again encouraged to give feedback.

DATA FUSION in Laboratory Test 2 (LT2)

Even though the complex network described in Figure Fusion_1 is promising in correlating CRC metrics with socioeconomic and behavioural features, the lack of publicly available datasets that include such information in patient level make it impossible to be trained without a proper data collection plan. Therefore, the efforts regarding the data fusion tool were focused on the study of publicly available data in a country level. Various databases, including the Global Burden of Disease Study 2019 (GBD 2019) Data Resources (https://ghdx.healthdata.org/gbd-2019) and the Our World in Data online repository (https://ourworldindata.org/), were studied in order to retrieve country level data about socioeconomic, lifestyle, behavioural, health facilities related and environmental risk factors for CRC. This study resulted in a large dataset including food and alcohol consumption habits, smoking rates, share of obese people, antibiotic consumption and CO2 and greenhouse gas emissions per European country from 2000 to 2020, and CRC metrics. Correlation and regression analysis were performed between risk factors and CRC metrics following two different approaches to study the exposure to each risk factor; namely a 1 and 2-year time-lag analysis and a 10-year moving average analysis.

This dataset will be enriched adding more data about other risk factors like socioeconomic features, such as education levels, human development index and gross national income, health facilities related data, and other lifestyle factors. In addition, such data will be added for more years and countries and age-standardized data will be taken into account for more accurate results. Environmental data analysis will not be performed by the data fusion tool since ICCS is responsible for analysing such data.



9 Next Steps

ONCO-RISTE

Next steps of ONCO-RISTE tool will focus on refining the computation of risk levels, with an expansion of the number of groups from the current tested ones to a total of five levels. The formulation of a rule base, provided by clinicians and the list of risk factors and groups described in D2.1, will further improve the quality of the classification. This will result in two distinct, yet comparable, approaches: one unsupervised, devoid of any rules, and the other incorporating semi-empirical rules and groups delineated by expert knowledge. The reliability of the tool will be ensured by disclosing the rules that are activated to generate the final output.

ONCO-CAWA

ONCO-CAWA is already mature. The next step is to invite ONCOSCREEN partners to use it, to gather feedback. In parallel, the data collection needs of ONCOSCREEN will be specified, and the implementation of the necessary mechanisms will be performed. Then, the clinical info widget will be designed and implemented. Finally, some gamification features will be designed and implemented based on the request of end users.

ONCO-CLIDE

Due to the scope of the task, there are multiple next steps for ONCO-CLIDE.

After preliminary data from the clinical trials are available and subsequent discussions with our partners, the system's architecture will be finalized and suitable algorithms will be selected.

Furthermore, considering the role of our tool as a final data consumer, upon further development of the project's other tools, we will be able to complete our integration.

Finally, a key decision awaits post-consultation with our clinical partners: determining whether to synchronize ONCO-CLIDE with existing health records systems or to opt for a standalone input method via our web platform. This decision will be guided by factors such as data sensitivity, ease of use for healthcare professionals, and overall system integrity.

ONCO-EVIDA

VITO will create template sentences for recommendations that are filled in as the user specifies their query. The strength of the final recommendation will depend on the strength of the correlation of the specified variables and other aspects of reliability (e.g. multivariable analyses are more reliable than univariable analyses).

VITO aims to procure Belgian CRC (screening) data to be used as a use case.

DATA FUSION

In the context of data fusion task, CERTH will design a data lake to serve as a centralized physical data repository for the ONCOSCREEN platform. The data lake will be responsible for handling the clinical data received from the virtual data harmonization layer. The rest of the ONCOSCREEN components will receive all necessary data from the data lake.

Regarding the data fusion tool, other methods for correlation analysis will also be studied and also more data will be collected. Also, CERTH will study the possibility of data fusion to integrate results from different ONCOSCREEN tools.



Conclusion

In conclusion, this deliverable marks a significant juncture in the project's trajectory, offering a comprehensive exploration of the initial development phase of the ONCO-RISTE, ONCO-CAWA, ONCO-CLIDE, ONCO-EVIDA, and Data Fusion Tool. The document details the iterative Co-Designed System activities, underscoring the integral involvement of end-users in the analysis and architecture phases. The project's commitment to meeting end-user requirements is evident, with workshops playing a crucial role in early requirement gathering and fulfilment.

The LITs conducted during the deliverable's development proved instrumental, with end-user feedback contributing to the enhancement of tool quality and guiding subsequent developmental steps.

Obviously, the presented tools differ at the level of maturity. In this iteration, ONCO-CAWA, ONCORISTE and ONCO-CLIDE were at an adequate level of maturity fulfilling required data according to their plan. Data fusion due to its dependency with other tool's output is quite normally expected to have a significant advancement over the second iteration. ONCOEVIDA had some delays in its initial development (due to a delay in hiring PhD student), that is however back on track. A tail-heavy plan has been created for ONCOEVIDA to fulfil its requirements, conducting necessary updates were appropriate in collaboration with the end users. It should be noted that intelligent analytics dashboard for healthcare policy makers are not common requiring additional discussions and collaboration needs among end user and technical partners.

In essence, D_{4.3} functions as the first stepping-stone that besides reporting on the progress and achievements until now, it also provides a clear roadmap for future iterations of the useroriented tools that will be exploited in ONCOSCREEN.



Annex A: Code for Data Flow Messages

ONCO-RISTE – ONCO-CAWA -DATA FUSION Integration exchange message

```
{
        "patient_id": "06d42c21-4c97-4171-ac00-3979a51a59d9",
        "riste input": {
            "tobacco_smoking_status": "Lifelong Non-smoker",
            "relationship_type": "Unknown",
            "tissue_or_organ_of_origin": "Not Reported",
            "primary_diagnosis": "Tubular Adenoma",
            "metastasis at diagnosis": "Unknown",
            "classification_of_tumor": "Premalignant",
            "site_of_resection_or_biopsy": "Liver",
            "gender": "Male"
        },
        "riste_output": {
            "risk_level": {
                "risk_level_0": 0.20525000686340086,
                "risk_level_1": 0.5978878025165388,
                "risk_level_2": 0.19686219062006027
            }
        }
    }
ONCO-RISTE – ONCO-CLIDE Integration exchange message
{
        "patient_id": "06d42c21-4c97-4171-ac00-3979a51a59d9",
        "riste_input": {
            "Tobacco Smoking Status": "Lifelong Non-smoker",
            "Relationship Type": "Unknown",
            "Tissue or Organ of Origin": "Not Reported",
            "Primary Diagnosis": "Tubular Adenoma",
            "Metastasis at Diagnosis?": "Unknown",
            "Classification of Tumor": "Premalignant",
            "Site of Resection or Biopsy": "Liver",
            "Gender": "Male"
        },
        "riste_output": {
            "risk_level": {
                "Risk Level0": 0.20525000686340086,
                "Risk Level1": 0.5978878025165388,
                "Risk Level2": 0.19686219062006027
            }
        }
    }
```

